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HARRIS COUNTY 
 HOUSING     AUTHORITY 

     1933 Hussion Street, Building #3 
 Houston, Texas 77003 

713-578-2100
www.hchatexas.org

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
for 

Financial Services – Mortgage Refinancing 
RFP NO. 21-04 

The Harris County Housing Authority ("HCHA") on behalf of HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC ("Baybrook") hereby solicits 
proposals from qualified financial institutions ("Offerors") to refinance the existing mortgage for Baybrook Park 
Retirement Center. Baybrook is seeking competitive refinancing terms to refinance the existing indebtedness of 
$2,600,000.00 and to provide cash-out funds. The HCHA is seeking additional cash for potential capital improvements, 
owner's reserves, and furthering the HCHA's Affordable Housing Program. The targeted loan amount is $3,600,000 to 
$4,600,000.00 as specified in this Request for Proposal (RFP).   

This RFP contains submission requirements, the scope of service, period of services, terms, and conditions, and other 
pertinent information for submitting a proper and responsive submittal. RFP #21-04 will be posted on and can be 
downloaded from HCHA's website www.hchatexas.org.  

Prospective Offerors desiring any explanation or interpretation of this solicitation must make the request in writing 
no later than October 12, 2021.  The request must be emailed to Gayla Mickens at Gayla.Mickens@hchatexas.org. 
Any information given to a prospective Offeror about this solicitation will be furnished to all other prospective 
Offerors as a written amendment to the solicitation. All amendment(s) to this solicitation, if issued, will be posted on 
HCHA's website www.hchatexas.org. All Offerors are encouraged to check the HCHA website for amendment(s) 
issuance.  

The proposal(s) must be emailed  as a PDF attachment to Gayla Mickens at Gayla.Mickens@hchatexas.org and include 
the following in the subject line: Financial Services – Mortgage Refinancing. RFP #21-04, Due Date and Time: 
October 22, 2021, 2:00 P.M. (CST), Name of Offeror ____________________.  

Submittals must reach HCHA no later than 2:00 P.M. (CST) on October 22, 2021. Late submissions will be handled 
in accordance with the provisions in Form HUD-5369-B, titled "Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of 
Offers." Submittals will be held in confidence and will not be released in any manner until after the contract award. 

http://www.hchatexas.org/
http://www.hchatexas.org/
mailto:Gayla.Mickens@hchatexas.org
http://www.hchatexas.org/
mailto:Gayla.Mickens@hchatexas.org
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Submittals will be evaluated on the criteria stated in the RFP. Negotiations may be conducted with Offerors who have a 
reasonable chance of being selected. After evaluating the proposals, the contract will be awarded to the responsible 
Offeror(s) whose qualifications, project proposal, and other factors considered are the most advantageous to HCHA. 

HCHA reserves the right to reject any and all submissions. 

 

Horace Allison, AIA 
Horace Allison, CEO 
Harris County Housing Authority 
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1. PROFILE OF THE HARRIS COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

The Harris County Housing Authority ("HCHA or Authority") is governed by the Texas Housing Authorities Law, 
codified in the Texas Local Government Code. The HCHA is a unit of government, and its functions are essential 
governmental functions. It operates and manages its affordable housing development to provide decent, safe, sanitary, and 
affordable housing to low-income families, veterans, the elderly, and the disabled, and implements various programs 
designed and funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD"). The HCHA is a Public Housing 
Agency ("PHA") that administers HUD's Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher ("HCV") and Veteran Affairs Supportive 
Housing ("VASH") Programs. HCHA's revenue is derived from federal funds, administrative fees, development grants, and 
rental income.  

HCHA enters into and executes contracts and other instruments necessary and convenient to exercise its powers. The 
property of HCHA is used for essential public and governmental purposes. The Authority and its property are exempt from 
all taxes, including sales tax on all its purchases of supplies and services.  

HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC (Baybrook) is an affiliate of the HCHA, and its Board is comprised of members of the HCHA 
Board of Commissioners. Baybrook is the borrower on the current loan.  
 
2. INTRODUCTION 

HCHA, as part of its mission to provide safe, decent, and sanitary affordable housing for low-income persons, hereby seeks 
proposals from qualified financial institutions ("Offerors") to refinance the existing mortgage for Baybrook Park 
Retirement Center. The current mortgage balance is approximately $2,600,000.00. This RFP will consider qualifications, 
rates, and loan terms/conditions in the selection process. The financial services to be performed are generally listed in 
"Attachment A" but may not be all-inclusive of the services needed. Consequently, evaluation by the successful Offeror 
may lead to alterations in the scope. 

HCHA/Baybrook will consider most favorably Offerors who clearly demonstrate a knowledge of the Federal, State, or 
local laws applicable to the financing of affordable housing. The Offeror must have demonstrated experience in the 
interaction of housing authorities with HUD, HUD regulations, and requirements related to the financing of affordable 
housing. All submittals must conform to the requirements outlined herein. 

If a contract is awarded, it will be awarded to the responsible Offeror whose qualifications, rates, loan terms/conditions, 
and other factors are deemed most advantageous to the Authority. Additional requirements or restrictions imposed by HUD 
and other governmental entities will also be considered in rendering a decision. 

Offerors are required to submit written proposals that present the Offeror's qualifications and understanding of the services 
to be performed.  The Offeror's proposals should be prepared simply and economically and should provide all information 
it considers pertinent to its qualifications for the scope of services contained herein.  Emphasis should be placed on the 
completeness of services offered and clarity of content of the proposal.  

The proposal must be submitted no later than 2:00 P.M. on Friday, October 22, 2021, to the following email address:  

Harris County Housing Authority 
Attn: Gayla Mickens 

1933 Hussion Street, Building #3 
Houston, TX 77003 

Email: gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org 
 

mailto:gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org
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3. PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE  

The anticipated schedule for the RFP is as follows: 
 

SCHEDULE 
 
EVENT         DATE_____________________ 
Advertised        October 3 and October 10, 2021 
 
Pre-submission Conference      N/A 
 
Receipt of Written Questions      October 12, 2021 
 
Response to Written Questions     October 14, 2021 
 
Submission Date       October 22, 2021 
 
 
4. DELIVERABLES  

Proposals must be emailed as a PDF attachment to gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org. Electronic submission of the proposal 
shall be considered signed by a principal or authorized representative of the Offeror. Electronic submissions must be 
received by the due date and time for consideration and must not exceed 25MB. 

Offerors are solely responsible for ensuring that their proposals are received by the time and date stated. Receipt at HCHA 
after the due date and time specified will be cause for rejection. 
 
Proposal Due Date/Time:  

Proposals must be submitted on or before 2:00 P.M. CST on October 22, 2021, by email attachment. When submitting an 
electronic copy of the proposal, the subject line must contain the title “Financial Services – Mortgage Refinancing: 
Baybrook Park Retirement Center” - Request for Proposals. RFP #21-04, Due Date and Time: September 24, 2021, 
2:00 P.M. (CST), Name of Offeror: ____________________. 
 
Submission Place/Address 

Proposals must be submitted (emailed) to Attn: Gayla Mickens, Harris County Housing Authority, 1933 Hussion 
Street, Building #3, Houston, Texas 77003 at the following email address gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org. 

Proposals by mail, telegram, telephone, or facsimile, or handwritten proposals, will not be accepted by HCHA. 
 
5. PRICES AND TERMS  

After receiving all responses, HCHA/Baybrook shall select the response that is most advantageous to the 
HCHA/Baybrook and then negotiate a fee schedule with the successful Offeror. If negotiations are unsuccessful, 
HCHA/Baybrook will cease negotiations and commence fee negotiations with the next ranked. 

 

mailto:gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org
mailto:gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org
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6. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

All submittals must conform to the requirements outlined herein. HCHA/Baybrook reserves the option to require oral 
presentation by Offeror(s) and to request additional information during the proposal review period. Submittals must be 
open and not subject to unilateral withdrawal or modification for ninety (90) days after the submittal due date. 

All costs incurred, directly or indirectly, in preparing a response to this request for proposals shall be the sole responsibility 
of and shall be borne by the Offeror. 

The successful Offeror shall:  

Complete written documentation of materials in a manner suitable for use by HCHA and HUD or governing entities as 
required. 

o Meet with HCHA/Baybrook, Harris County Community Services Division (CSD), HUD, and local officials as 
may be necessary. 

o Coordinate all services with HCHA/Baybrook. 
o Coordinate all services with other parties as determined necessary by HCHA/Baybrook. 
o List the firms' names, contact persons, telephone numbers, and profiles of expected participants in the performance 

of this service. The submittal must provide a timeline/schedule including tasks required to accomplish the proposed 
services. There may be subsequent instructions issued to the successful Offeror in connection with the final process. 
The proposal must make provisions to meet and comply with all applicable laws and regulatory criteria. 

o Provide a minimum of three (3) references using letters of reference from housing authorities for whom Offeror 
has provided financial services - mortgage refinancing in the past twelve (12) months. Provide the following: 
 Organization Name and Address Contact Person  
 Telephone Number  
 Email Address of Contact  
 Dates of Service  
 Brief Description of Service(s) Provided 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE  

Requests for additional information related to this RFP should be made in writing and emailed to Gayla Mickens at 
gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org by October 12, 2021. This will allow time for the issuance of any necessary amendment(s) 
to the RFP. 

An amendment may be issued prior to the opening of the proposals to change or clarify the intent of this RFP. All 
amendments shall be binding in the same way as if originally written in this RFP. It is the Offeror's responsibility to check 
the HCHA website for the issuance of amendment(s). 

Any interpretation affecting all Offerors made prior to the submittal due date will be issued in the form of an amendment(s). 
HCHA/Baybrook will not be bound by or responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of this RFP package 
other than those given in writing as set forth in this paragraph. Oral instructions, interpretations, or representations will not 
be binding upon HCHA/Baybrook or HCHA/Baybrook representatives. 
Sub-consultant(s) and others who have been requested by the consultant to assist in preparing a proposal shall obtain 
necessary information from the Offeror. They shall not directly contact HCHA/Baybrook or HCHA/Baybrook 
representatives for this information.  

mailto:gayla.mickens@hchatexas.org
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The agreement for these services will be awarded to one financial institution whose proposal after negotiations was judged 
to be the most advantageous to HCHA/Baybrook. 

Proposals shall describe the Offerors' proposed compensation structure, including fee and payment schedule.  
 
8. DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS  

The following is a description of the minimum information, which Offerors must supply in their submittals. It is up to the 
Offeror to give such supplementary facts or materials that it considers may be of assistance in evaluating the proposal 
submitted. Proposals that omit critical elements may be considered non-responsive. Each proposal shall include a Table of 
Contents listing the proposal's contents. The critical elements of the proposal shall include the following information: 

I. Letter of Transmittal. Signed by the person authorized to commit the organization to perform the services in the 
proposal.  

II. Table Contents.  
III. Executive Summary. Provide a brief non-technical overview of the financial institution, including the range of 

services offered. Offerors should provide information reflecting how and why the institution's products and services 
meet HCHA/Baybrook's needs. List the institution's team members, roles, responsibilities, qualifications and 
identify the primary contact person. 

IV. Name, title, email address, telephone, and fax number of person(s) authorized to contractually obligate the financial 
institution and negotiate on behalf of the financial institution.  

V. A brief statement summarizing the Offeror's understanding, methodology/strategy to accomplish the requested 
services.   

VI. Offeror shall provide an anticipated timeline to complete the refinancing transaction.  
VII. Term sheet must include but is not limited to the following: 

 Name and address of Lender 
 Primary Point of Contact 
 Loan Amount  
 Interest Rate 
 Loan Term 
 Amortization Term 
 Max. Loan to Value Ratio 
 Min. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
 Origination Fee 
 Due Diligence and Other Fees (inspections, appraisals, legal, etc.) 
 Guarantee(s) 
 Recourse 
 Prepayment Penalties 
 Forward Rate Lock Fee/Term 
 Deposit Requirement 
 Timeline for Closing 

VIII. References. 
IX. Certifications and Affidavits. Offerors shall submit executed versions of the following: 

Attachment B:  Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ) 

Attachment C:  M/WBE Participation Form 

Attachment F:  Certifications and Representations of Offerors for Non-Construction 
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Contracts (Form HUD 5369-C) 

Attachment H:  Form of Non-Collusive Affidavit 

Attachment I:   Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions 

Attachment J:  Declaration (Required Submission) 
 
9. EVALUATION CRITERIA  

Proposals must be prepared in conformance with the guidelines stated herein. 

An Evaluation/Selection Committee will evaluate proposals. This committee will review the proposals and recommend 
them to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Baybrook Manager. The CEO/Manager will present the recommendation 
to the Board of Commissioners of HCHA and the Board of Directors of Baybrook, seeking approval to negotiate and 
execute all documents required to effectuate the refinancing of Baybrook Park. 

HCHA reserves the right to call for supplemental information from Offerors and to meet with all or any one of them to 
clarify points of uncertainty or ambiguity. Offerors agree to cooperate fully and promptly in providing such supplemental 
information or meeting requests. 

Selection of the successful Offeror will be at the sole discretion of HCHA/Baybrook. All proposals shall be evaluated, 
and up to the three most qualified (top-ranked), responsive, and responsible financial institutions may be invited for panel 
interviews and discussions. If a contract is awarded, it will be awarded to the responsible Offeror whose qualifications and 
other factors are deemed most advantageous to HCHA/Baybrook. Additionally, HCHA/Baybrook shall have the right to 
reject any and all proposals at its discretion. 

HCHA/Baybrook reserves the right to negotiate all aspects of the term sheet. 

The RFP will be evaluated and rated on, but may not be limited to, the following criteria: 

CRITERIA POINTS 

Interest Rate 30 

Loan to Value Ratio, DSCR, and other underwriting criteria 20 

Favorable Prepayment Penalties  20 

Lender Profile, References, and Experience of Key Personnel  15 

Schedule of Performance/Timeliness 15 

Total Points Possible 100 

 

10. AVAILABILITY OF RECORDS  

HCHA/Baybrook and any duly authorized representative (which may include, but not be limited to, the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, the Inspector General of the United States, and/or Harris County), 
shall have access to, and the right to examine any and all pertinent books, records, documents, papers, and the like, of 
the successful Offeror's office or firm, which shall relate to the performance of the services to be provided. 



10 

 

 
11. ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER  

The successful Offeror shall not assign or transfer any interest in the contract in whole or in part without the written 
approval of HCHA.  
 
12. CONTRACT AWARD – TERM SHEET  

Acceptance of the offer for the services specified herein will be made by negotiating and executing a duly authorized 
Term Sheet. All Offerors are cautioned against making assumptions or accepting any representation by any employee, 
member, officer, or representative of HCHA/Baybrook concerning the selection of the successful Offeror until the 
agreement has been finally negotiated and executed.  

The term sheet providing said services must be approved by the Board of Commissioners of HCHA and the Board of 
Directors of Baybrook.  
 
13. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT  

The successful Offeror shall be responsible for maintaining satisfactory standards of employees' competency, conduct, 
courtesy, appearance, honesty, integrity, and shall be responsible for taking such disciplinary action with respect to 
any employee, as may be necessary. 
 
14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

No employee, officer, or agent of HCHA/Baybrook shall participate directly or indirectly in the selection or in the 
award of any contract if a conflict, real or apparent, would be involved. Such conflict would arise when a financial or 
other interest in an agency selected for award is held by:  

• An employee, officer, or agent involved in making the award; or 
• His/her relative including father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, 

nephew, niece, husband, wife, domestic partner, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-
in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, 
stepsister, half-brother, or half-sister; or 

• His/her business or professional partner; or 
• An organization that employs, is negotiating to employ, or has an arrangement concerning prospective 

employment of any of the above.  
 
15. STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP 

The proposal shall contain the legal name of the financial institution with whom HCHA/Baybrook will enter into the 
financial transaction to refinance Baybrook by name, address, phone number, and name of the principal person 
assigned to negotiate on behalf of the Offeror.  
 
16. M/WBE PARTICIPATION 

The successful Offeror agrees to make its best efforts to subcontract with minority business enterprises and/or women 
business enterprises (herein called M/WBE) certified as such or recognized by HCHA as a certified M/WBE.  
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17. PERTINENT FEDERAL REGULATIONS WITH REGARD TO NONDISCRIMINATION AND 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

The requirements of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, relating 
to prohibitions against discrimination in housing and the benefits of federally funded programs because of race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin must be met by the successful Offeror.  

The successful Offeror must adhere to federal regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age under the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and prohibit discrimination against handicapped individuals under Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1989.  

The requirements of Executive Order 11246, relating to equal employment opportunity in connection with federally 
funded programs, must be met by the successful Offeror. 

The successful Offeror must also meet the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 
1968, relating to the training and employment of individuals, and contracting for business opportunities in metropolitan 
areas in which federally funded programs are being operated. 

The successful Offeror must meet the requirements of Executive Orders 11625, 12432, and 12138 relating to the use 
of minority and women's business enterprises in connection with federally funded programs. 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The Harris County Housing Authority (HCHA), on behalf of the HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC ("Baybrook") 
hereby solicits proposals from qualified financial institutions to refinance the existing mortgage for Baybrook 
Park. Baybrook Park is seeking competitive refinancing terms to refinance the existing indebtedness of 
$2,600,000.00 and to provide cash-out funds. The targeted loan amount is $3,600,000.00 to $4,600,000.00 as 
specified in this Request for Proposal (RFP).  

Baybrook Park Retirement Center is located at 500 W Texas Avenue, Webster, TX 77598.  

Baybrook Park comprises 68 - 1 bedroom/1 bath units and 32 - 2 bedroom/2 bath units that range in size from 
650 sq.ft. to 972 sq.ft. Baybrook Park is wood frame with stucco/brick veneer construction. It is situated on 5.6 
acres of land. Baybrook Park was constructed in 2006. Baybrook Park serves elderly households meeting the 
following income tiers: 

30%AMI  

50%AMI  

60%AMI  

80%AMI 

Market Rate Units 

 

 

 

 
 



ATTACHMENT B 

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Revised 11/30/2015Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us

FORM CIQ

OFFICE USE ONLYThis questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session.

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who
has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the
vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a).

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later
than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be
filed.  See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code.

A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An
offense under this section is a misdemeanor.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

Date Received

A.  Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or likely to receive taxable income,
other than investment income, from the vendor?

                             Yes                 No

B.  Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the direction
of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable income is not received from the
local governmental entity?

                             Yes                 No

7

Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a-1).

Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity Date

Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.1

Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law requires that you file an updated

completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th business day after the date on which

you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.)

2

3 Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed.

        Name of Officer

Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government officer, or a family member of the
officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A).  Also describe any family relationship with the local government officer.
Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described.  Attach additional pages to this Form
CIQ as necessary.

4

6

5
Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 maintains with a corporation or
other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an

ownership interest of one percent or more.



Revised 11/30/2015Form provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

                                     For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A complete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/
Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a): "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties
based on commercial activity of one of the parties.  The term does not include a connection based on:

(A)  a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an
agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
(B)  a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
(C)  a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and
that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):
(a)  A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:

***
(2)  the vendor:

(A)  has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a
family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable
income, other than investment income, that exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period
preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that

(i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed;
or
(ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the
vendor;

(B)  has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts
that have an aggregate value of more than $100  in the 12-month period preceding the date the
officer becomes aware that:

                    (i)  a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
                    (ii)  the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)
(a)  A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship
with a local governmental entity and:

(1)  has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local
governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
(2)  has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the
officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any
gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or

              (3)  has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.
(a-1)  The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator
not later than the seventh business day after the later of:
           (1)  the date that the vendor:

(A)  begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental
entity; or
(B)  submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals
or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local
governmental entity; or

           (2)  the date the vendor becomes aware:
(A)  of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a
family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
(B)  that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or
(C)  of a family relationship with a local government officer.



ATTACHMENT C 

M/WBE Participation Form 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



M/WBE PARTICIPATION 
 
 

M/WBE PARTICIPATION: The consultant agrees to make its best efforts to subcontract with 
minority business enterprises and/or women business enterprises (herein called M/WBE) 
certified as such or recognized by HCHA as a certified M/WBE.  Consultant shall make its best 
efforts to subcontract a sufficient dollar amount with M/WBEs to ensure that a minimum of 30 
percent of the final contract dollars are expended on one or more M/WBEs.  All adjustments that 
cause the contract price to increase will also increase the total amount that Consultant must make 
its best efforts to expend on M/WBEs. 
 
USING BEST EFFORTS TO FULFILL M/WBE REQUIREMENT: In the event HCHA has 
a reasonable belief that Consultant will not use his/her/its best efforts to meet the 30 percent 
M/WBE participation goal, HCHA reserves the right to pull work from the contract.  Best efforts 
may be established by showing that Consultant has contacted and solicited bids/quotes from 
subcontractors and worked with the HCHA to seek assistance in identifying M/WBEs. 
 
FAILURE TO USE YOUR BEST EFFORTS TO COMPLY MAY CONSTITUTE 
BREACH OF CONTRACT AND SUBJECT THE CONTRACT TO TERMINATION. 
 
NOTIFICATION OF M/WBE PARTICIPATION: Consultant agrees to promptly complete 
and return all M/WBE Confirmation of Participation and M/WBE Confirmation of Payment 
forms utilized by HCHA to confirm M/WBE subcontractor by submitting copies of checks made 
payable to the respective M/WBE subcontractor signed by the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________ 
CONSULTANT     DATE 

 
 



BIDDER’S PROPOSED E/WBE PARTICIPATION FORM 

 

Bidder proposes to work with the following MBE/WBE participants: 

 

Name of Participant  M/WBE    Certifying Entity  Percent of Total Work 

                                                            (City/METRO/HISD) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 



SAMPLE FORMAT FOR RECORDKEEPING 

ESTIMATED PROJECT WORKFORCE BREAKDOWN 

 

M/WBE PARTICPATION 

JOB CATEGORY TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 

POSTIONS 

NEEDED FOR 

PROJECT 

NO. POSITIONS 

OCCUPIED BY 

PERMANENT 

EMPLOYEES 

NUMBER OF 

POSITIONS NOT 

OCCUPIED 

NUMBER OF 

POSITIONS TO 

BE FILLED WITH 

M/WBE 

OFFICER/SUPERVISOR     

PROFESSIONAL     

TECHNICAL     

OFFICE/CLERICAL     

SERVICE WORKERS     

TRAINEES     

CONTRACTS:     

     

     

     

OTHERS     

     

     

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT D 

Affirmative Action for Disabled Workers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR DISABLED WORKERS 

41 CFR 60-741.4 

41 CFR 60-250.4 

(a) The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for which the employee or 

applicant for employment is qualified. The Consultant agrees to take affirmative action to 

employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat qualified disabled individuals without 

discrimination based upon their physical or mental disability in all employment practices 

such as the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, 

advertising, layoff or termination, rates of payor other forms of compensation, and selection 

of training, including apprenticeship. 

(b) The Consultant agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 

Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act.  

(c) In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, actions 

for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, regulations, and relevant 

orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act. 

(d) The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 

for employment, notice in a form to be prescribed by the Chief Development Officer, 

provided by or through the HCHA. Such notices shall state the Consultant's obligation under 

the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified disabled 

employees and applicants for employment, and the rights of applicants and employees. 

(e) The Consultant will notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a 

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or other understanding, that the Consultant 

is bound by the terms of Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and is committed to 

take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment physically and mentally 

disabled individuals. 

(f)  The Consultant will include the provisions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase 

order of $2,500 or more unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary 

issued pursuant to Section 503 of the Act, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 

subcontract or vendor. The Consultant will take such action with request to any subcontract 

or purchase orders as the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs 

may direct to enforce such provisions, including action for noncompliance. 

(g) The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because he or she is a disabled veteran or veteran of the Vietnam Era in regard to any 

position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. 

The Consultant shall comply with the affirmative action clause prescribe in 41 C.F.R. 

Section 60-250.4(a) through (m) and the regulations contained in part 60-250. 



ATTACHMENT E 

Instructions to Offerors for Non-Construction (Form HUD-5369-B) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







ATTACHMENT F 

Certifications and Representations of Offerors for Non-Construction Contracts (Form HUD 5369-C) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







ATTACHMENT G 

General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts (Form HUD 5370-C) 
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General Conditions for Non-Construction 
Contracts 
Section I – (With or without Maintenance Work) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 
Office of Labor Relations 
OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2014) 

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send 
comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the 
Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C. 
20410-3600; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0157), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this 
completed form to either of these addressees. 

Applicability. This form HUD-5370-C has 2 Sections. These 
Sections must be inserted into non-construction contracts as 
described below: 

1) Non-construction contracts (without maintenance) 
greater than $100,000 - use Section I; 

2) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine 
maintenance as defined at 24 CFR 968.105) greater than 
$2,000 but not more than $100,000 - use Section II; 
and 

3) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine 
maintenance), greater than $100,000 – use Sections I 
and II. 

Section I - Clauses for All Non-Construction Contracts greater 
than $100,000 

1. Definitions 

The following definitions are applicable to this contract: 
(a) 'Authority or Housing Authority (HA)' means the 

Housing Authority. 
(b) 'Contract' means the contract entered into between the 

Authority and the Contractor. It includes the contract form, 
the Certifications and Representations, these contract 
clauses, and the scope of work. It includes all formal 
changes to any of those documents by addendum, Change 
Order, or other modification. 

(c) 'Contractor' means the person or other entity entering into 
the contract with the Authority to perform all of the work 
required under the contract. 

(d) 'Day' means calendar days, unless otherwise stated. 
(e) 'HUD' means the Secretary of Housing and Urban 

development, his delegates, successors, and assigns, and 
the officers and employees of the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development acting for 
and on behalf of the Secretary. 

2. Changes  

(a) The HA may at any time, by written order, and without 
notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the 
general scope of this contract in the services to be 
performed or supplies to be delivered. 

(b) If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the 
hourly rate, the not-to-exceed amount of the contract, or 
the time required for performance of any part of the work 
under this contract, whether or not changed by the order, 
or otherwise affects the conditions of this contract, the HA 
shall make an equitable adjustment in the not-to-exceed 
amount, the hourly rate, the delivery schedule, or other 
affected terms, and shall modify the contract accordingly. 

(c) The Contractor must assert its right to an equitable 
adjustment under this clause within 30 days from the date 
of receipt of the written order. However, if the HA decides 
that the facts justify it, the HA may receive and act upon a 

proposal submitted before final payment of the contract. 

(d) Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under 
clause Disputes, herein. However, nothing in this clause 
shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the 
contract as changed. 

(e) No services for which an additional cost or fee will be 
charged by the Contractor shall be furnished without the 
prior written consent of the HA. 

3. Termination for Convenience and Default 

(a) The HA may terminate this contract in whole, or from time 
to time in part, for the HA's convenience or the failure of 
the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations (default). 
The HA shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a 
written Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, 
and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the 
notice, the Contractor shall: (i) immediately discontinue all 
services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); and 
(ii) deliver to the HA all information, reports, papers, and 
other materials accumulated or generated in performing 
this contract, whether completed or in process. 

(b) If the termination is for the convenience of the HA, the HA 
shall be liable only for payment for services rendered 
before the effective date of the termination. 

(c) If the termination is due to the failure of the Contractor to 
fulfill its obligations under the contract (default), the HA 
may (i) require the Contractor to deliver to it, in the manner 
and to the extent directed by the HA, any work as 
described in subparagraph (a)(ii) above, and compensation 
be determined in accordance with the Changes clause, 
paragraph 2, above; (ii) take over the work and prosecute 
the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the 
Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by 
the HA; (iii) withhold any payments to the Contractor, for 
the purpose of off-set or partial payment, as the case may 
be, of amounts owed to the HA by the Contractor. 

(d) If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations 
(default), it is determined that the Contractor had not failed, 
the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for 
the convenience of the HA, and the Contractor shall been 
titled to payment as described in paragraph (b) above. 

(e) Any disputes with regard to this clause are expressly made 
subject to the terms of clause titled Disputes herein. 

4. Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records 

(a) The HA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, 
or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 
years after final payment under this contract, have access 
to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's directly 
pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records 
involving transactions related to this contract for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and 
transcriptions. 
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(b) The Contractor agrees to include in first-tier subcontracts 
under this contract a clause substantially the same as 
paragraph (a) above. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, 
excludes purchase orders not exceeding $10,000. 

(c) The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) 
and (b) above for records relating to: 
(i) appeals under the clause titled Disputes; 
(ii) litigation or settlement of claims arising from 

the performance of this contract; or, 
(iii) costs and expenses of this contract to which the 

HA, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly 
authorized representatives has taken exception shall 
continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, 
or exceptions. 

5. Rights in Data (Ownership and Proprietary Interest) 

The HA shall have exclusive ownership of, all proprietary 
interest in, and the right to full and exclusive possession of all 
information, materials and documents discovered or produced 
by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract, including 
but not limited to reports, memoranda or letters concerning the 
research and reporting tasks of this Contract. 

6. Energy Efficiency 

The contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and 
policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the 
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy 
Policy and Conservation Act (Pub.L. 94-163) for the State in 
which the work under this contract is performed. 

7. Disputes 

(a) All disputes arising under or relating to this contract, except 
for disputes arising under clauses contained in Section III,  
Labor Standards Provisions, including any claims for 
damages for the alleged breach there of which are not 
disposed of by agreement, shall be resolved under this 
clause. 

(b) All claims by the Contractor shall be made in writing and 
submitted to the HA. A claim by the HA against the 
Contractor shall be subject to a written decision by the HA. 

(c) The HA shall, with reasonable promptness, but in no event 
in no more than 60 days, render a decision concerning any 
claim hereunder. Unless the Contractor, within 30 days 
after receipt of the HA's decision, shall notify the HA in 
writing that it takes exception to such decision, the decision 
shall be final and conclusive. 

(d) Provided the Contractor has (i) given the notice within the 
time stated in paragraph (c) above, and (ii) excepted its 
claim relating to such decision from the final release, and 
(iii) brought suit against the HA not later than one year after 
receipt of final payment, or if final payment has not been 
made, not later than one year after the Contractor has had 
a reasonable time to respond to a written request by the 
HA that it submit a final voucher and release, whichever is 
earlier, then the HA's decision shall not be final or 
conclusive, but the dispute shall be determined on the 
merits by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(e) The Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of 
this contract, pending final resolution of any request for 
relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under the contract, 
and comply with any decision of the HA. 

8. Contract Termination; Debarment 

A breach of these Contract clauses may be grounds for 
termination of the Contract and for debarment or denial of 
participation in HUD programs as a Contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 24 CFR Part 24. 

9. Assignment of Contract 

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this 
contract; except that claims for monies due or to become due 
from the HA under the contract may be assigned to a bank, 
trust company, or other financial institution. If the Contractor is a 
partnership, this contract shall inure to the benefit of the 
surviving or remaining member(s) of such partnership approved 
by the HA. 

10. Certificate and Release 

Prior to final payment under this contract, or prior to settlement 
upon termination of this contract, and as a condition precedent 
thereto, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the HA a 
certificate and release, in a form acceptable to the HA, of all 
claims against the HA by the Contractor under and by virtue of 
this contract, other than such claims, if any, as may be 
specifically excepted by the Contractor in stated amounts set 
forth therein. 

11. Organizational Conflicts of Interest 

(a) The Contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge 
and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not 
have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined 
as a situation in which the nature of work under this 
contract and a contractor's organizational, financial, 
contractual or other interests are such that: 
(i) Award of the contract may result in an unfair 

competitive advantage; or 
(ii) The Contractor's objectivity in performing the contract 

work may be impaired. 
(b) The Contractor agrees that if after award it discovers an 

organizational conflict of interest with respect to this 
contract or any task/delivery order under the contract, he or 
she shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing 
to the Contracting Officer which shall include a description 
of the action which the Contractor has taken or intends to 
take to eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The HA may, 
however, terminate the contract or task/delivery order for 
the convenience of the HA if it would be in the best interest 
of the HA. 

(c) In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational 
conflict of interest before the award of this contract and 
intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the Contracting 
Officer, the HA may terminate the contract for default. 

(d) The terms of this clause shall be included in all 
subcontracts and consulting agreements wherein the work 
to be performed is similar to the service provided by the 
prime Contractor. The Contractor shall include in such 
subcontracts and consulting agreements any necessary 
provisions to eliminate or neutralize conflicts of interest. 

12. Inspection and Acceptance 

(a) The HA has the right to review, require correction, if 
necessary, and accept the work products produced by the 
Contractor. Such review(s) shall be carried out within 30 
days so as to not impede the work of the Contractor. Any 
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product of work shall be deemed accepted as submitted if 
the HA does not issue written comments and/or required 
corrections within 30 days from the date of receipt of such 
product from the Contractor. 

(b) The Contractor shall make any required corrections 
promptly at no additional charge and return a revised copy 
of the product to the HA within 7 days of notification or a 
later date if extended by the HA. 

(c) Failure by the Contractor to proceed with reasonable 
promptness to make necessary corrections shall be a 
default. If the Contractor's submission of corrected work 
remains unacceptable, the HA may terminate this contract 
(or the task order involved) or reduce the contract price or 
cost to reflect the reduced value of services received. 

13. Interest of Members of Congress 

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States 
of America or Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any 

share or part of this contract or to any benefit to arise there 
from, but this provision shall not be construed to extend to this 
contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit. 

14. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former 
Members, Officers, or Employees 

No member, officer, or employee of the HA, no member of the 
governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no 
member of the governing body in which the HA was activated, 
and no other pubic official of such locality or localities who 
exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the 
project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year 
thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or 
the proceeds thereof. 

15. Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal 
Transactions 

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause: 
"Agency", as defined in 5 U.S.C. 552(f), includes Federal 

executive departments and agencies as well as independent 
regulatory commissions and Government corporations, as 
defined in 31 U.S.C. 9101(1). 

"Covered Federal Action" means any of the following 
Federal actions: 

(i) The awarding of any Federal contract;  
(ii) The making of any Federal grant;  
(iii) The making of any Federal loan;  
(iv) The entering into of any cooperative agreement; and, 
(v) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

Covered Federal action does not include receiving from an 
agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure 
or guarantee a loan. 

"Indian tribe" and "tribal organization" have the meaning 
provided in section 4 of the Indian Self-Determination and 
Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450B). Alaskan Natives 
are included under the definitions of Indian tribes in that Act. 

"Influencing or attempting to influence" means making, with 
the intent to influence, any communication to or appearance 
before an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with any covered 
Federal action. 

"Local government" means a unit of government in a State 
and, if chartered, established, or otherwise recognized by a 
State for the performance of a governmental duty, including a 
local public authority, a special district, an intrastate district, a 
council of governments, a sponsor group representative 
organization, and any other instrumentality of a local 
government. 

"Officer or employee of an agency" includes the following 
individuals who are employed by an agency: 

(i) An individual who is appointed to a position in the 
Government under title 5, U.S.C., including a position 
under a temporary appointment; 

(ii) A member of the uniformed services as defined in 
section 202, title 18, U.S.C.; 

(iii) A special Government employee as defined in section 
202, title 18, U.S.C.; and, 

(iv) An individual who is a member of a Federal advisory 
committee, as defined by the Federal Advisory 
Committee Act, title 5, appendix 2. 

“Person" means an individual, corporation, company, 
association, authority, firm, partnership, society, State, and local 
government, regardless of whether such entity is operated for 
profit or not for profit. This term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal 
organization, or other Indian organization with respect to 
expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law. 

"Recipient" includes all contractors, subcontractors at any 
tier, and subgrantees at any tier of the recipient of funds 
received in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. The term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal 
organization, or any other Indian organization with respect to 
expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law. 

"Regularly employed means, with respect to an officer or 
employee of a person requesting or receiving a Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, an officer or 
employee who is employed by such person for at least 130 
working days within one year immediately preceding the date of 
the submission that initiates agency consideration of such 
person for receipt of such contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. An officer or employee who is employed by such 
person for less than 130 working days within one year 
immediately preceding the date of submission that initiates 
agency consideration of such person shall be considered to be 
regularly employed as soon as he or she is employed by such 
person for 130 working days. 

"State" means a State of the United States, the District of 
Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, a territory or 
possession of the United States, an agency or instrumentality of 
a State, and a multi-State, regional, or interstate entity having 
governmental duties and powers. 
(b) Prohibition. 

(i) Section 1352 of title 31, U.S.C. provides in part that no 
appropriated funds may be expended by the recipient 
of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement to pay any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with any of the following 
covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making 
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 

(ii) The prohibition does not apply as follows: 
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(1) Agency and legislative liaison by Own 
Employees. 

(a) The prohibition on the use of appropriated 
funds, in paragraph (i) of this section, does not 
apply in the case of a payment of reasonable 
compensation made to an officer or employee of 
a person requesting or receiving a Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, if 
the payment is for agency and legislative 
activities not directly related to a covered Federal 
action. 

(b) For purposes of paragraph (b)(i)(1)(a) of 
this clause, providing any information specifically 
requested by an agency or Congress is permitted 
at any time. 

(c) The following agency and legislative liaison 
activities are permitted at any time only where 
they are not related to a specific solicitation for 
any covered Federal action: 

(1) Discussing with an agency 
(including individual demonstrations) the qualities 
and characteristics of the person's products or 
services, conditions or terms of sale, and service 
capabilities; and, 

(2) Technical discussions and other 
activities regarding the application or adaptation 
of the person's products or services for an 
agency's use. 

(d) The following agency and legislative liaison 
activities are permitted where they are prior to 
formal solicitation of any covered Federal action: 

(1) Providing any information not 
specifically requested but necessary for an 
agency to make an informed decision about 
initiation of a covered Federal action; 

(2) Technical discussions regarding the 
preparation of an unsolicited proposal prior to its 
official submission; and 

(3) Capability presentations by persons 
seeking awards from an agency pursuant to the 
provisions of the Small Business Act, as 
amended by Public Law 95-507 and other 
subsequent amendments. 

(e) Only those activities expressly authorized 
by subdivision (b)(ii)(1)(a) of this clause are 
permitted under this clause. 

(2) Professional and technical services. 
(a) The prohibition on the use of appropriated 

funds, in subparagraph (b)(i) of this clause, 
does not apply in the case of- 

(i) A payment of reasonable compensation 
made to an officer or employee of a 
person requesting or receiving a 
covered Federal action or an extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of a covered Federal 
action, if payment is for professional or 
technical services rendered directly in 
the preparation, submission, or 
negotiation of any bid, proposal, or 
application for that Federal action or for 
meeting requirements imposed by or 
pursuant to law as a condition for 
receiving that Federal action. 

(ii) Any reasonable payment to a person, 
other than an officer or employee of a 

person requesting or receiving a 
covered Federal action or an extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of a covered Federal action 
if the payment is for professional or 
technical services rendered directly in 
the preparation, submission, or 
negotiation of any bid, proposal, or 
application for that Federal action or for 
meeting requirements imposed by or 
pursuant to law as a condition for 
receiving that Federal action. Persons 
other than officers or employees of a 
person requesting or receiving a 
covered Federal action include 
consultants and trade associations. 

(b) For purposes of subdivision (b)(ii)(2)(a) of 
clause, "professional and technical services" 
shall be limited to advice and analysis 
directly applying any professional or 
technical discipline. 

(c) Requirements imposed by or pursuant to law 
as a condition for receiving a covered 
Federal award include those required by law 
or regulation, or reasonably expected to be 
required by law or regulation, and any other 
requirements in the actual award 

documents. 
(d) Only those services expressly authorized by 

subdivisions (b)(ii)(2)(a)(i) and (ii) of this 
section are permitted under this clause. 

(iii) Selling activities by independent sales 
representatives. 

(c) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in 
subparagraph (b)(i) of this clause, does not apply to the 
following selling activities before an agency by independent 
sales representatives, provided such activities are prior to 
formal solicitation by an agency and are specifically limited 
to the merits of the matter: 
(i) Discussing with an agency (including individual 

demonstration) the qualities and characteristics of the 
person's products or services, conditions or terms of 
sale, and service capabilities; and 

(ii) Technical discussions and other activities regarding 
the application or adaptation of the person's products 
or services for an agency's use. 

(d) Agreement. In accepting any contract, grant, cooperative 
agreement, or loan resulting from this solicitation, the 
person submitting the offer agrees not to make any 
payment prohibited by this clause. 

(e) Penalties. Any person who makes an expenditure 
prohibited under paragraph (b) of this clause shall be 
subject to civil penalties as provided for by 31 U.S.C. 1352. 
An imposition of a civil penalty does not prevent the 
Government from seeking any other remedy that may be 
applicable. 

(f) Cost Allowability. Nothing in this clause is to be interpreted 
to make allowable or reasonable any costs which would be 
unallowable or unreasonable in accordance with Part 31 of 
the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), or OMB 
Circulars dealing with cost allowability for recipients of 
assistance agreements. Conversely, costs made 
specifically unallowable by the requirements in this clause 
will not be made allowable under any of the provisions of 
FAR Part 31 or the relevant OMB Circulars. 
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16. Equal Employment Opportunity 

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees 
as follows: 

(a) The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee 
or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin. 

(b) The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated 
during employment without regard to their race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, 
but not be limited to (1) employment; (2) upgrading; (3) 
demotion; (4) transfer; (5) recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; (6) layoff or termination; (7) rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and (8) selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. 

(c) The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places available 
to employees and applicants for employment the notices to 
be provided by the Contracting Officer that explain this 
clause. 

(d) The Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements 
for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, 
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
or national origin. 

(e) The Contractor shall send, to each labor union or 
representative of workers with which it has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, 
the notice to be provided by the Contracting Officer 
advising the labor union or workers' representative of the 
Contractor's commitments under this clause, and post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment. 

(f) The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, 
as amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

(g) The Contractor shall furnish all information and reports 
required by Executive Order 11246, as amended and by 
rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall permit access to its 
books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for 
purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such 
rules, regulations, and orders. 

(h) In the event of a determination that the Contractor is not in 
compliance with this clause or any rule, regulation, or order 
of the Secretary of Labor, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part, and the 
Contractor may be declared ineligible for further 
Government contracts, or federally assisted construction 
contracts under the procedures authorized in Executive 
Order 11246, as amended. In addition, sanctions may be 
imposed and remedies invoked against the Contractor as 
provided in Executive Order 11246, as amended, the rules, 
regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

(i) The Contractor shall include the terms and conditions of 
this clause in every subcontract or purchase order unless 
exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the 
Secretary of Labor issued under Executive Order 11246, as 
amended, so that these terms and conditions will be 
binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The 
Contractor shall take such action with respect to any 
subcontractor or purchase order as the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor 
may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, 
including sanctions for noncompliance; provided that if the 

Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 
litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such 
direction, the Contractor may request the United States to 
enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States. 

17. Dissemination or Disclosure of Information 

No information or material shall be disseminated or disclosed to 
the general public, the news media, or any person or 
organization without prior express written approval by the HA. 

18. Contractor's Status  

It is understood that the Contractor is an independent contractor 
and is not to be considered an employee of the HA, or assume 
any right, privilege or duties of an employee, and shall save 
harmless the HA and its employees from claims suits, actions 
and costs of every description resulting from the Contractor's 
activities on behalf of the HA in connection with this Agreement. 

19. Other Contractors  

HA may undertake or award other contracts for additional work 
at or near the site(s) of the work under this contract. The 
contractor shall fully cooperate with the other contractors and 
with HA and HUD employees and shall carefully adapt 
scheduling and performing the work under this contract to 
accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that 
may be provided by the Contracting Officer. The contractor shall 
not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the 
performance of work by any other contractor or HA employee. 

20. L i e n s  

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on HA's 
property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors. 

21. Training and Employment Opportunities for Residents in 
the Project Area (Section 3, HUD Act of 1968; 24 CFR 135) 

(a) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the 
requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u 
(section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that 
employment and other economic opportunities generated by 
HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, 
shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very 
low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of 
HUD assistance for housing. 

(b) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's 
regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, which implement section 3. As 
evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this 
contract certify that they are under no contractual or other 
impediment that would prevent them from complying with the 
Part 135 regulations. 

(c) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or 
representative of workers with which the contractor has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 
notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative 
of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and 
will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work 
site where both employees and applicants for training and 
employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall 
describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum 
number and job titles subject to hire, availability of 
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apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; 
and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications 
for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall 
begin. 

(d) The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every 
subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR 
Part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in 
an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 
clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the 
regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. The contractor will not 
subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has 
notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in 
violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. 

(e) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, 
including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor 
is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with 
persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 
Part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were 
not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR 
Part 135. 

(f) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135 may 
result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and 
debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts. 

22. Procurement of Recovered Materials 

(a) In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, 
as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
the Contractor shall procure items designated in guidelines of the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that 
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials 
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of 
competition. The Contractor shall procure items designated in 
the EPA guidelines that contain the highest percentage of 
recovered materials practicable unless the Contractor 
determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a 
reasonable period of time; (2) fail to meet reasonable 

performance standards, which shall be determined on the basis 
of the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and 
Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only available at 
an unreasonable price. 

(b) Paragraph (a) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under 
this contract where: (1) the Contractor purchases in excess of 
$10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the 
preceding Federal fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any 
amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded 
with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a 
State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State; and 
(ii) purchased a total of in excess of $10,000 of the item both 
under and outside that contract. 
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U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing 

Section II – (With Maintenance Work)Office of Labor Relations      OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2014) 

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of in formation. Send 
comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the 
Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C. 
20410-3600; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0157), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this 
completed form to either of these addressees. 

Applicability. This form HUD-5370C has 2 Sections. These 
Sections must be inserted into non-construction contracts as 
described below: 

1) Non-construction contracts (without maintenance) greater 
than $100,000 - use Section I; 

2) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance 
as defined at 24 CFR 968.105) greater than $2,000 but not 
more than $100,000 - use Section II; and 

3) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance), 
greater than $100,000 – use Sections I and II. 

Section II – Labor Standard Provisions for all Maintenance 
Contracts greater than $2,000 

1. Minimum Wages 
(a) All maintenance laborers and mechanics employed under 

this Contract in the operation of the project(s) shall be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than semi-monthly, and 
without subsequent deduction (except as otherwise 
provided by law or regulations), the full amount of wages 
due at time of payment computed at rates not less than 
those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary 
of Housing and Urban Development which is attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. Such laborers and 
mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate on the 
wage determination for the classification of work actually 
performed, without regard to skill. Laborers or mechanics 
performing work in more than one classification may be 
compensated at the rate specified for each classification 
for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the 
employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time 
spent in each classification in which work is performed. 
The wage determination, including any additional 
classifications and wage rates approved by HUD under 
subparagraph 1(b), shall be posted at all times by the 
Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in 
a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily 
seen by the workers. 

(b) (i) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in 
the wage determination and which is to be employed under 
the Contract shall be classified in conformance with the 
wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional 
classification and wage rate only when the following criteria 
have been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification 
required is not performed by a classification in the 
wage determination; 

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the 
industry; and 

(3) The proposed wage rate bears a reasonable 
relationship to the wage rates contained in the 
wage determination. 

(ii) The wage rate determined pursuant to this 
paragraph shall be paid to all workers performing work 

in the classification under this Contract from the first 
day on which work is performed in the classification. 

2. Withholding of funds 

The Contracting Officer, upon his/her own action or upon 
request of HUD, shall withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
Contractor under this Contract or any other contract subject to 
HUD-determined wage rates, with the same prime Contractor, 
so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics employed 
by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by this clause. In the event of failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic employed under this Contract all or part of 
the wages required under this Contract, the Contracting Officer 
or HUD may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such 
action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any 
further payment or advance until such violations have ceased. 
The Public Housing Agency or HUD may, after written notice to 

the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on 
account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective 
employees to whom they are due. 

3. Records  

(a) The Contractor and each subcontractor shall make and 
maintain for three (3) years from the completion of the work 
records containing the following for each laborer and 
mechanic: 
(i) Name, address and Social Security Number; 
(ii) Correct work classification or classifications; 
(iii) Hourly rate or rates of monetary wages paid; 
(iv) Rate or rates of any fringe benefits provided; 

(v) Number of daily and weekly hours worked; 
(vi) Gross wages earned;  
(vii) Any deductions made; and 
(viii) Actual  wages paid.  

(b) The Contractor and each subcontractor shall make the 
records required under paragraph 3(a) available for 
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of HUD or the HA and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working 
hours on the job. If the Contractor or any subcontractor 
fails to make the required records available, HUD or its 
designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take 
such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension 
of any further payment, advance or guarantee of funds. 

4. Apprentices and Trainees 

(a) Apprentices and trainees will be permitted to work at less 
than the predetermined rate for the work they perform 
when they are employed pursuant to and individually 
registered in: 
(i) A bona fide apprenticeship program registered 

with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment 
and Training Administration (ETA), Office of 

General Conditions for Non-Construction 
Contracts 
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Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor 
Services (OATELS), or with a state apprenticeship 
agency recognized by OATELS, or if a person is 
employed in his/her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an 
apprenticeship program, who is not individually 
registered in the program, but who has been 
certified by OATELS or a state apprenticeship 
agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for 
probationary employment as an apprentice; 

(ii) A trainee program which has received prior  
approval, evidenced by formal certification by the 
U.S. Department of Labor, ETA; or 

(iii) A training/trainee program that has received prior 
approval by HUD. 

(b) Each apprentice or trainee must be paid at not less than 
the rate specified in the registered or approved program for 
the apprentice’s/trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a 
percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the 
applicable wage determination. Apprentices and trainees 
shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the 
provisions of the registered or approved program. If the 
program does not specify fringe benefits, 
apprentices/trainees must be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. 

(c) The allowable ratio of apprentices or trainees to 
journeyman on the job site in any craft classification shall 
not be greater than the ratio permitted to the employer as 
to the entire work force under the approved program. 

(d) Any worker employed at an apprentice or trainee wage rate 
who is not registered in an approved program, and any 
apprentice or trainee performing work on the job site in 
excess of the ratio permitted under the approved program, 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the classification of work actually 
performed. 

(e) In the event OATELS, a state apprenticeship agency 
recognized by OATELS or ETA, or HUD, withdraws 
approval of an apprenticeship or trainee program, the 
employer will no longer be permitted to utilize 
apprentices/trainees at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

5. Disputes concerning labor standards 

(a) Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions 
contained in Section II of this form HUD-5370-C, other than 
those in Paragraph 6, shall be subject to the following 
procedures. Disputes within the meaning of this paragraph 
include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its 
subcontractors) and the HA, or HUD, or the employees or 
their representatives, concerning payment of prevailing 
wage rates or proper classification. The procedures in this 
section may be initiated upon HUD’s own motion, upon 
referral of the HA, or upon request of the Contractor or 
subcontractor(s). 
(i) A Contractor and/or subcontractor or other 

interested party desiring reconsideration of 
findings of violation by the HA or HUD relating to 
the payment of straight-time prevailing wages or 
classification of work shall request such 
reconsideration by letter postmarked within 30 
calendar days of the date of notice of findings 
issued by the HA or HUD. The request shall set 

forth those findings that are in dispute and the 

reasons, including any affirmative defenses, with 
respect to the violations. The request shall be 
directed to the appropriate HA or HUD official in 
accordance with instructions contained in the 
notice of findings or, if the notice does not specify 
to whom a request should be made, to the 
Regional Labor Relations Officer (HUD). 

(ii) The HA or HUD official shall, within 60 days 
(unless otherwise indicated in the notice of 
findings) after receipt of a timely request for 
reconsideration, issue a written decision on the 
findings of violation. The written decision on 
reconsideration shall contain instructions that any 
appeal of the decision shall be addressed to the 
Regional Labor Relations Officer by letter 
postmarked within 30 calendar days after the date 
of the decision. In the event that the Regional 
Labor Relations Officer was the deciding official 
on reconsideration, the appeal shall be directed to 
the Director, Office of Labor Relations (HUD). Any 
appeal must set forth the aspects of the decision 
that are in dispute and the reasons, including any 
affirmative defenses, with respect to the 
violations. 

(iii) The Regional Labor Relations Officer shall, 
within 60 days (unless otherwise indicated in the 
decision on reconsideration) after receipt of a 
timely appeal, issue a written decision on the 
findings. A decision of the Regional Labor 
Relations Officer may be appealed to the Director, 
Office of Labor Relations, by letter postmarked 
within 30 days of the Regional Labor Relations 
Officer’s decision. Any appeal to the Director 
must set forth the aspects of the prior decision(s) 
that are in dispute and the reasons. The decision 
of the Director, Office of Labor Relations, shall be 
final. 

(b) Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of 
paragraph 6 shall not be subject to paragraph 5(a) of this 
form HUD-5370C. Such disputes shall be resolved in 
accordance with the procedures of the U.S. Department of 
Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6 and 7. Disputes within 
the meaning of this paragraph 5(b) include disputes 
between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and 
the HA, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 
employees or their representatives. 

6. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

The provisions of this paragraph 6 are applicable only where 
the amount of the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in 
this paragraph, the terms “laborers” and “mechanics” includes 
watchmen and guards. 

(a) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the Contract work which may 
require or involve the employment of laborers or 
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or 
mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed 
on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half 
times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
40 hours in such workweek. 

(b) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated 
damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions 
set forth in paragraph 6(a), the Contractor and any 
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subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the 
case of work done under contract for the District of 
Columbia or a territory, to the District or to such territory), 
for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be 
computed with respect to each individual laborer or 
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in 
violation of the provisions set forth in paragraph (a) of this 
clause, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which 
such individual was required or permitted to work in excess 
of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of 
the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in 
paragraph (a) of this clause. 

(c) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. 
HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the U.S. 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
Contractor or subcontractor under any such Contract or 
any federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or 
any other federally-assisted contract subject to the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is 
held by the same prime Contractor such sums as may be 
determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 
Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in the provisions set forth 
in paragraph (b) of this clause. 

7. Subcontracts  

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any 
subcontracts all the provisions contained in this Section II and 
also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 
provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor 
shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with all the provisions contained in 
these clauses. 

8. Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates 

Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any 
fringe benefits), determined under state law to be prevailing, 
with respect to any employee in any trade or position employed 
under the Contract, is inapplicable to the contract and shall not 
be enforced against the Contractor or any subcontractor, with 
respect to employees engaged under the contract whenever 
such non-Federal prevailing wage rate, exclusive of any fringe 
benefits, exceeds the applicable wage rate determined by the 
Secretary of HUD to be prevailing in the locality with respect to 
such trade or position. 
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Form of Non-Collusive Affidavit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FORM OF NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS 
 
COUNTY OF HARRIS 
 
________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he is 
 
 _______________________________ 
(a partner of officer of the firm of, etc.) 
 
the party making the foregoing proposal or bid, that such proposal or bid is genuine and not 
collusive or sham; that said bidder has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or 
communication or conference with any person to fix the bid price or affiant or of any other 
bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of said bid price, or of that of any other 
bidder, or to secure any advantage against 
 
THE HARRIS COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
or of any person interested in the proposed Contract; and that all statements in said proposal or 
bid are true. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Signature of Bidder, if Bidder is an Individual 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Signature of Bidder, if Bidder is a Partnership 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Signature of Officer, if Bidder is a Corporation 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ________________, 2013 
 
 
_______________________  

Notary Public 

 
My Commission expires: _________________  
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Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Previous edition is obsolete form HUD 50071 (01/14) 
ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3 

 

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 01/31/2017) 

Certification of Payments 
to Influence Federal Transactions 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Public and Indian Housing  

Applicant Name 

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 

paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 

an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-

tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 

Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 

renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 

been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a 

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the 

undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 

Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its 

instructions. 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this 

certification be included in the award documents for all subawards 

at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 

under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all 

sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 

reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered 

into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 

or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 

31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 

$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. 
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 
1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802) 

 

Name of Authorized Official Title 

Signature Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 
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Declaration (Required Submission) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DECLARATION - (REQUIRED SUBMITTAL) 

 
____________________ 
NAME 

_____________________ 
TITLE 

_____________________ 
CITY, STATE 

_____________________ 
SUBMITTAL DATE 

The undersigned, as Offeror, declares that the only persons interested in this Response are named 
herein, that no other person has any interest in this proposal, that this proposal is made without 
connection or arrangement with any other person, and that this proposal is in every respect fair, 
in good faith, and without collusion or fraud. 

The Offeror further declares that he/she has complied in every respect with all of the instructions 
of Offerors, and has read all addenda, if any, has satisfied himself or herself fully relative to all 
matters and conditions with respect to the proposal. 

The Offeror agrees, if this proposal is accepted, to execute such agreement as appropriate for the 
purpose of establishing a formal contractual relationship between the Offeror and the HCHA for 
the performance of all requirements to which the proposal pertains. 

The Offeror states that this proposal is based upon the proposal documents and amendments, if 
any. 

Persons Interested in this Response: 

Name   Identity of Interest 

1. _______________________________ 

2. _______________________________ 

3. _______________________________ 

_________________________________________ 
NAME OF FIRM/INDIVIDUAL/CORPORATION 

 
__________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE/TITLE 
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Section 3 Policy 
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Harris County Housing Authority 

Section 3 Policy 

 

 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE  

The purpose of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by Section 

915 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, is to "ensure that employment and other 

economic opportunities generated by certain HUD financial assistance shall, to the greatest extent 

feasible, and consistent with existing Federal, State and local laws and regulations, be directed toward 

low-and very low income persons, particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for 

housing, and to business concerns which provide economic opportunities to low-and very low-income 

persons." The 1992 Act sets forth:  

 The types of HUD financial assistance, activities, and recipients subject to the requirements of 

Section 3;  

 The specific individuals and business concerns who are the intended beneficiaries of the 

economic opportunities generated from HUD-assisted activities; and  

 The order of priority in which these individuals and business concerns should be recruited and 

solicited for the employment and other economic opportunities generated from HUD-assisted 

activities.  

 

The Harris Housing Authority's Section 3 Policy is expressed in this statement, the goal statement, and 

the preference tiers. Implementation procedures may be amended periodically to insure that the policy 

requirements are being met or to bring about efficiencies in the implementation of the program based on 

the practice and experience of running the program.  

 

*Note that supply and delivery contracts are exempted from these Section 3 Policy requirements.  

 

 

HARRIS COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY PREFERENCE TIERS  

Harris County Housing Authority's preference is to ensure that as many housing authority residents as 

possible are employed. In an effort to further that goal, the Authority has created the following preference 

tier structure. Vendors are asked to comply with Section 3 by first considering Category I, hiring at the 

site where work is being performed. If the vendor demonstrates to the Authority's satisfaction the inability 

to hire at the site, the Authority's next preference is for the vendor to hire residents from other Authority 

properties and/or programs (Category II). If the vendor cannot meet its Section 3 goal in this manner and 

needs to move to other categories, the vendor must document this inability to comply with the preference.  

 

I. Preference for Section 3 Residents in Training and Employment Opportunities  

Category I  Train/hire residents from the site where the work is being performed  

 

Category II  Train/hire residents of other housing developments and/or programs managed by the 

housing authority that is expending the covered assistance 

 

Category III  Train/hire participants in a HUD Youthbuild-like program being carried out in the 

metropolitan area or Non-metropolitan County in which the covered assistance is 

expended 

 

Category IV  Train/hire other Section 3 residents  
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II. Preference for Section 3 Business Concerns in Contracting Opportunities  

Category I Businesses   

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by residents of the housing development or 

developments for which the Section 3 covered assistance is expended and whose full-time 

permanent workforce includes 30 percent of these persons as employees (or 30% of persons who 

were Section 3 residents within 3 years of their first employment) 

 

Category II Businesses  

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by residents of other housing developments 

or developments managed by the housing authority that is expending the Section 3 covered 

assistance and whose full-time, permanent workforce includes 30 percent of these persons as 

employees (or 30% of persons who were Section 3 residents within 3 years of their first 

employment) 

 

Category III Businesses 

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by residents of the housing development or 

developments for which the Section 3 covered assistance is expended 

 

Category IV Businesses 

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by residents of other housing developments 

or developments managed by the housing authority that is expending the Section 3 covered 

assistance 

 

Category V Businesses  

HUD Youthbuild-like programs being carried out in the metropolitan area in which the  Section 3 

covered assistance is expended 

 

Category VI Businesses 

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by Section 3 residents and: 

i. whose permanent, full-time workforce includes no less than 30 percent Section 3 

residents; or  

ii. that subcontract 20 percent or more of the total amount of the contract (including 

modifications) and subcontracts 25 percent of the subcontracted amount to Section 3 

business concerns 

 

Category VII Businesses 

Business concerns that are 51 percent or more owned by Section 3 residents 

 

NOTE: For contracts or purchase orders $100,000 or less, other economic opportunities can be identified 

without regard for the Harris County Housing Authority's preference requirements. 

 

 

SECTION 3 COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS  

 

Hiring 

A. Background  

1. The Section 3 regulations provide that recipients, their contractors, and any subcontractors 

demonstrate compliance by employing Section 3 residents as 5% of the aggregate number of new 

hires.  
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2. The Section 3 Regulations, at CFR Part 135, require that in affordable housing programs, 

compliance efforts shall be directed to provide training and employment opportunities to Section 

3 residents in accordance with the HCHA preference tier structure.  

3. If a new hire is needed and a Section 3 resident is identified, that Section 3 resident will be 

required to submit evidence of Section 3 status to the recipient, contractor or subcontractor.  

4. The Harris County Housing Authority requires a preference for hiring from the development 

where work is being performed. However, the Harris County Housing Authority will not require a 

vendor to hire from the development at the site if:  

a. A pre-identified list of Section 3 residents from a job site contains no persons qualified to 

perform the work. Qualified residents from other developments shall then be considered. 

b. The vendor's workforce is adequate to do the job and no new hiring is needed. In the 

event that no new hires are needed, vendors must pursue other avenues of compliance as 

set forth in the Harris County Housing Authority's preference tier structure.  

 

B. Compliance  

1. As part of each bid or proposal submitted, the respondent must document their workforce by 

position. Such information will be re-verified at the commencement of the contract.  

2. Vendors will be required to submit documentation in the form of payroll forms submitted weekly 

that clearly identify the Section 3 hires. The vendor must comply with the Section 3 requirement 

throughout the life of the contract. Harris County Housing will periodically audit this 

information. Failure to comply with the weekly submittal of payroll shall result in the delay of 

payment.  

3. Harris County Housing Authority residents by virtue of their income are Section 3 residents. 

Contractors employing Harris County Housing Authority residents must retain documentation 

that demonstrates any Harris County Housing Authority residents hired to meet Section 3 

employment goals are:  

a. identified on the lease of household, that is lease compliant; and  

b. able to provide to the contractor or subcontractor the client number for the household 

where Harris County Housing Authority residency is claimed. This client number must 

appear on the certified payrolls submitted by the vendor to verify a Section 3 hire.  

4. Non-Harris County Housing Authority households claiming Section 3 status must be prepared to 

submit evidence of income and residency in Harris County at the time of hire. As part of the 

Section 3 compliance process, vendors will be required to document that employees hired meet 

the residency and income requirements.  

 

Contracting 

A. Background  

1. The Section 3 Regulations, at 24 CFR Part 135, provide that the Harris County Housing 

Authority, its contractors and subcontractors may demonstrate compliance by awarding contracts 

to Section 3 business concerns or to vendors who contract with such firms.  

2. Harris County Housing Authority's contracting goals require that Section 3 firms receive at least:  

a. 10 percent of the total dollar of all Section 3 covered contracts for building trades work 

for maintenance, repair, modernization or development of public or Indian housing; or  

b. 10 percent of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered contracts for building trades 

work arising in connection with housing rehabilitation, housing construction and other 

public construction; and 

c. 3 percent of the total dollar amount of all other Section 3 covered contracts.  

3. Goals apply to the entire amount of Section 3 covered assistance awarded to a recipient in any 

federal fiscal year (FFY), October 1- September 30. Correspondingly, Harris County Housing 

Authority's goals shall apply to the total dollar amount of each contract or purchase order.  
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4. Recipients that award contracts to contractors that will provide training or hiring, must ensure that 

contractors provide training, employment and contracting opportunities to Section 3 residents and 

Section 3 business concerns.  

5. Efforts shall be directed to award contracts to Section 3 business concerns according to HCHA 

preference categories.   

 

B. Compliance  

1. Business concerns claiming Section 3 status based on ownership and workforce or workforce 

only (as applicable) must meet that status at the time the bid or proposal is submitted to the Harris 

County Housing Authority.  

2. Anyone claiming to be a Section 3 resident or business concern shall be required, as set forth by 

procedure, to provide evidence of such status.  

3. Pursuant to 24 CFR 135.36 (c) any firm, prime or subcontractor claiming Section 3 status must 

demonstrate to the Authority's satisfaction that the business concern is responsible and has the 

ability to complete the work under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. In 

evaluating firms under this provision the Authority will examine:  

a. the work history and prior performance of the firm;  

b. the requirements of the job verses the skills evidenced by the firm through its owners, 

officers, principals, and key staff;  

c. technical and logistical capacity to complete the work considering contracts already 

awarded to the firm by the Authority or others;  

d. bonding capacity and ability to obtain required insurance (with allowances for 

disadvantaged or startup firms);  

e. evidence of past sanctions imposed by the Authority or others; and  

f. evidence that the firm, its principals, associates, partners, subcontractors or others have 

not acted or colluded in order to circumvent the compliance process by structuring 

contractual or other relationships or engaging in practices designed to comply with 

Section 3 only to obtain the preference without regard to the work requirements of the 

job.  

4. A business concern need not hire to be considered a Section 3 business provided that:  

a. the business concern is 51 % or more owned by a Section 3 resident; or  

b. the business concern's workforce consists of sufficient numbers of Section 3 residents to 

qualify the vendor as a Section 3 business (30% or more of the full-time workforce 

consists of Section 3 residents, or persons who were Section 3 residents within 3 years of 

first employment); or  

c. the business concern subcontracts 20% or more of the total amount of the contract 

(including modifications) and in turn subcontracts 25% of the subcontracted amount to 

Section 3 business concerns (25% of20%); or  

5. After award of a contract, if a business concern must hire to maintain the Section 3 workforce 

percentage, new hiring efforts must be made in accordance with the Harris County Housing 

Authority preference tier for hiring (Category I).  

6. If a business concern claims Section 3 status by virtue of workforce composition, documentation 

of the 30% workforce requirement must be submitted to the Authority as part of the response to 

the bid, quote, or proposal. Further, the firm must maintain the Section 3 workforce percentage 

throughout the life of the contract. Workforce composition is subject to audit.  

7. A business concern (including joint-ventures) seeking to qualify for a Section 3 preference shall 

certify and submit evidence that they are entitled to the applicable Section 3 preference and that 

they are a Section 3 business concern as defined in 24 CFR, Part 135 and by the Harris County 

Housing Authority pursuant to this policy. Prime or subcontractors must submit documentation 

(including workforce composition data) as part of any bid, quote, or proposal submitted to the 

Harris County Housing Authority. Additional documentation is required for joint-ventures.  
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8. Firms that claim Section 3 business status by subcontracting (25% of 20%) of the total contract) 

to other Section 3 businesses must require that the subcontractor(s) provide ownership or 

workforce documentation as applicable. The prime contractors must keep such records on file and 

available for review by the Authority. Such documentation must also be submitted as part of any 

bid, quote or proposal.  

9. Subcontractors identified by any prime contractor claiming Section 3 status per item 6 must be a 

Section 3 business by ownership and/or workforce as defined in this policy. Subcontractors used 

by prime contractors to comply with item 6 cannot claim Section 3 status by further 

subcontracting.  

10. Section 3 Joint-Ventures - to meet Section 3 contracting goals the Authority is permitted to 

contract with an association of firms as least one of which meets the Authority's definition of a 

Section 3 business concern. A definition of a joint venture is provided in the definition section of 

this policy. Compliance requirements for joint-ventures are discussed below.  

11. Joint-Ventures are subject to the following documentation requirements:  

a. The joint-venture agreement must be in writing and must be submitted as part of the 

response to any bid or proposal solicited by the Harris County Housing Authority. In 

order for the Authority to evaluate the "adequacy" and "capacity", the agreement must 

describe in sufficient detail the area(s) of work assigned to each member of the joint-

venture.  

b. The joint-venture agreement must reference a completed and fully executed joint-venture 

certification, as provided by the Authority, which must also be attached to the joint-

venture agreement as an exhibit.  

c. The Harris County Housing Authority requires that the Section 3 joint-venture partner is 

a bona-fide Section 3 business; therefore, the joint-venture shall provide documentation 

that shows that the Section 3 partner meets the ownership and workforce, or workforce 

requirements established in this policy. Section 3 joint-venture partners cannot use 

subcontracting to establish their status as a Section 3 business concern.  

d. Section 3 requires that the joint-venture partner be responsible for a clearly defined 

portion of the work. Proposals or bids must specify the labor hours assigned to and the 

compensation to be received by the Section 3 joint-venture firm.  

e. Section 3 firms in the joint-venture must be qualified to perform the scope of work and 

have the capacity to complete the work assigned under the joint-venture agreement (see 

item b above). 

 

Bid or Proposal Evaluation 

A. Vendors who fail to address Section 3 requirements will be deemed nonresponsive.  This means that 

in the proposal or bid documents submitted to the Harris County Housing Authority, the Contractor's 

Affidavit and Compliance commitment must be completed including applicable attachments and 

supporting documentation to support claims of compliance by hiring, contracting, or other economic 

opportunities.    

 

B. After written notice from the Harris County Housing Authority specifying the defects in the Section 3 

information, vendors will be given no more than 5 business days to complete the form and provide all 

required documents. Failure to respond within the 5 days will result in the Authority declaring the 

bidder or respondent non-responsive. The contract or bid will then be awarded to the next lowest 

bidder or to the respondent with the next highest score. Where the selection is a qualifications-based 

procurement, the Harris County Housing Authority will award to the firm that is the next highest 

ranked.  
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DEFINITIONS  

 

NEW HIRES- Persons selected to fill full-time, temporary or seasonal employment opportunities.  

 

RESIDENT OWNED BUSINESS (ROB)- A ROB is a business concern owned or controlled by 

affordable housing residents, that is: (a) at least 51 % owned by one or more affordable housing residents; 

and (b) whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more such individuals. 

For the purpose of Section 3 compliance, a ROB must also meet the Housing Authority's definitions of a 

Section 3 business concern as described below.  

 

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES GENERATED BY SECTION 3 COVERED ASSISTANCE- All 

employment opportunities generated by the expenditure of Section 3 covered PIH assistance (i.e. 

operating assistance, development assistance, and modernization assistance) and with respect to Section 3 

covered housing and community development assistance, all employment opportunities arising in 

connection with Section 3 covered projects, including management and administrative jobs (including 

architectural, engineering, or related professional services and jobs directly related to administrative 

support of these activities) connected with the Section 3 covered project.  

 

RECIPIENT- Any entity which receives Section 3 covered assistance, directly from HUD or from another 

recipient and includes, but is not limited to, any State, unit of local government, PHA, IHA, Indian Tribe, 

or other public body, public or private nonprofit organization, private agency or institution, mortgagor, 

developer, limited dividend sponsor, builder, property manager, community housing development 

organization, resident management corporation, resident council, or cooperative association. Recipient 

also includes any successor, assignee, or transferee of any such entity, but does not include any ultimate 

beneficiary under the HUD program to which Section 3 applies and does not include contractors.  

 

SECTION 3- Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 

1701u).  

 

SECTION 3 BUSINESS CONCERN- As defined by the Harris County Housing Authority, a Section 3 

business concern is one:  

A. That is fifty-one (51 %) or more owned by Section 3 residents; or  

B. Whose full-time employees includes persons, at least 30 percent of whom are current Section 3 

residents, or were Section 3 residents within three (3) years of the date of first employment with 

the business concern; or  

C. That provides evidence of a commitment to: (1) subcontract 25 percent or more of the total 

amount of the contract (including any modification); and (2) in turn subcontracts in excess of 25 

percent of the amount from (1) to Section 3 business concerns as defined in A or B (25% of 

20%).  

 

Example: If the contract amount is $1,000,000, vendor must subcontract at least 20% or 

$200,000. Of the $200,000, 25% or $50,000 must go to Section 3 business concern(s) as defined 

in A or B.  

 

SECTION 3 CLAUSE- The contract provisions and sanction set forth in 24 CFR 135.8.  

 

SECTION 3 COVERED ACTIVITY- Any activity that is funded by Section 3 covered assistance 

including Affordable housing assistance.  

 

SECTION 3 COVERED ASSISTANCE- There are no dollar amount thresholds for PIH (Public and 

Indian Housing) funded Section 3 covered activities. Section 3 applies to all contractors and 
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subcontractors performing work in connection with the following assistance regardless of the amount of 

the contract or subcontract:  

 Public and Indian housing development assistance provided pursuant to Section 5 of the 1937 Act;  

 Public and Indian housing operating assistance provided pursuant to Section 9 of the 1937 Act;  

 Public and Indian housing modernization assistance provided pursuant to Section 14 of the 1937 Act;  

 Section 8 assistance for work arising in connection with; housing rehabilitation, housing 

construction, or other public construction projects.  

 

SECTION 3 COVERED CONTRACT- A contract or subcontract (including a professional service 

contract) awarded by a recipient or contractor for work generated by the expenditure of Section 3 covered 

assistance or for work arising in connection with a Section 3 covered proj ect. "Section 3 covered 

contracts" do not include contracts for the purchase of supplies and materials except, whenever a contract 

for materials includes the installation of the materials, the contract constitutes a "Section 3 covered 

contract."  

 

SECTION 3 COVERED PROJECT- The construction, reconstruction, conversion, or rehabilitation of 

housing (including reduction and abatement of lead-based paint hazards), other public construction which 

includes buildings or improvements (regardless of ownership) assisted with housing or community 

development assistance.  

 

SECTION 3 JOINT VENTURE- An association of business concerns, one of which qualifies as a Section 

3 business concern, formed by written joint venture agreement to engage in and carry out a specific 

business venture for which purpose the business concerns combine their efforts, resources, and skills for 

joint profit, but not necessarily on a continuing or permanent basis for conducting business generally, and 

for which the Section 3 business concern:  

 Is responsible for a clearly defined portion of the work to be performed and holds management 

responsibilities in the joint venture; and  

 Performs at least 25% of the work and is contractually entitled to compensation proportional to its 

work.  

 

SECTION 3 RESIDENT-  

A. An affordable housing resident or  

B. An individual who resides in Harris County and who meets the following criteria:  

i. Low-income persons-families (or single persons) whose incomes do not exceed 80 per 

centum of the median income for the area.  

ii. Very low-income persons-families (or single persons) whose incomes do not exceed 50 per 

centum of the median income for the area.  
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A. PURPOSE 

As a county housing authority and public corporation, the Harris County Housing 

Authority (“Authority”) is obligated to achieve and maintain certain standards of ethics 

under state law and under its Annual Contributions Contract (“ACC”) with the U. S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).  To achieve the highest 

standard of ethics and propriety, the Board of Commissioners adopted and established an 

Ethics Policy on August 15, 2012, to describe in a single document the various 

obligations of the Authority prescribed by federal and state law, and its contractual 

obligations with HUD.  The purpose of the Ethics Policy is to maintain the reputation and 

goodwill of the Authority in Harris County and the state of Texas by ensuring that the 

public and other governmental entities have confidence in the integrity, independence, 

and impartiality of the commissioners, officers, employees, and other contractors of the 

Authority. 

 

B.  ENFORCEMENT 

The board of commissioners shall recommend to any commissioner appropriate action to 

remediate or resolve any conflict or violation or shall refer to the Harris County 

Attorney’s Office the facts and issues regarding any unresolved conflict or violation by a 
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commissioner that could constitute inefficiency, neglect of duty, or misconduct in office 

that might justify removal of the commissioner from office. The board of commissioners 

shall direct the executive director to remediate or resolve any conflict or violation 

involving an Authority employee. The executive director may take appropriate action to 

remedy or resolve an employee conflict or violation, including disciplinary action under 

the Employee Handbook. 

 

C.  ETHICS POLICY 

All commissioners and employees shall abide by the provisions of Texas State law and 

the HUD ACC contained in the Sources of Law and Policy section below. To the extent 

allowed by federal or state law or the HUD ACC, the following rules shall further 

regulate the conduct of commissioners and employees to avoid the appearance or risk of 

impropriety: 

 

Economic Benefit  
A commissioner or employee shall not take any official action that he or she 

knows is likely to affect the economic interest of the commissioner or employee 

or their immediate family; an outside client or customer; a household member; the 

outside employer or a parent, child or spouse; a business entity or its affiliate of 

the commissioner or employee or their immediate family; a person or business 

entity from whom the commissioner or employee, or a spouse, has, within the 

previous 12 months, solicited, received and not rejected, or accepted an offer of 

employment, or with whom the commissioner or employee, or a spouse, has 

engaged in negotiations pertaining to business opportunities. Any commissioner 

or employee shall disclose such a relationship or interest and refrain from 

participation in any discussion or official action in the affected matter.  A 

commissioner who is required to refrain from participation or action under this 

Section shall not be counted as “absent” for purposes of making a quorum under 

Article III, Section 7 of the Authority’s Bylaws, because of the commissioner’s 

refrainment. 

 

Unfair Participation 

A commissioner or employee may not use his or her official position to unfairly advance 

or impede private interests, or to grant or secure, or attempt to grant or secure, for any 

person, including himself or herself, any form of special consideration, treatment, 

exemption, or advantage beyond that which is lawfully available to other persons.  A 

commissioner or employee shall not acquire an interest in, or acquire an interest affected 

by, any contract, transaction, decision or other matter, if the commissioner or employee 

knows that the interest will be affected by the impending official action by the Authority.  

A commissioner or employee may not enter into any agreement or understanding with 

any person that official action by the commissioner or employee will be rewarded or 

reciprocated by the other person.  A commissioner or employee shall not appoint or 

employ, or vote to appoint or employ, any relative within the third degree of 

consanguinity or second degree of affinity to any office or position within the Authority.  

No commissioner or employee shall supervise a relative in the third degree of 

consanguinity or second degree of affinity.  If an employee, because of marriage, 
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promotion, reorganization, or otherwise, is placed into the line of supervision of a 

proscribed relative, one of the employees must be reassigned or other arrangements made 

for supervision.  Any commissioner or employee shall disclose such a relationship or 

interest and refrain from participation in any discussion or official action in the affected 

matter.   

Gifts 

A commissioner or employee, and second degree relatives or outside business associates, 

shall not solicit, accept, or agree to accept any gift to benefit for himself or herself or an 

interested business entity that reasonably tends to influence or reward official conduct or 

that the commissioner or employee knows is being offered with the intent to influence or 

reward official conduct.  A commissioner or employee shall not solicit any gift or benefit 

but may accept or agree to accept a non-cash gift of nominal value and meals in an 

individual expense of $50 or less at any occurrence from any individual or business entity 

doing or seeking to do business with the Authority.  However, except as provided in the 

sentence immediately below, such gifts may not in aggregate exceed $250 during any 12-

month period.  Gifts of reasonable value related to a special occasion and the relationship 

between the donor and recipient, reasonable public awards, or rewards for meritorious 

service or professional achievement, scholarships and fellowships, admissions to events 

in his or her official capacity or a spouse’s position, and solicitations for civic or 

charitable causes are excluded from this rule. 

 

Confidential Information 

A commissioner or employee shall not use his or her official position to obtain official 

information about any person or entity for any purpose other than in the performance of 

official duties.  A commissioner or employee shall not intentionally, knowingly, or 

recklessly disclose any confidential information concerning the property, operations, 

policies, affairs, or tenants of the Authority excepted as permitted by the Texas Public 

Information Law or applicable federal law or regulation. 

 

Representation of Private Interests 

A commissioner or employee shall not represent any person, group, or entity before the 

Authority’s board of commissioners or before staff having policy-making or decision-

making responsibility.  A commissioner or employee shall not assert the prestige of the 

commissioner’s or employee’s position for the purpose of advancing private interests or 

state, or imply that he or she is able to influence Authority action on any basis other than 

the merits. 

 

Outside Employment 
A commissioner or employee shall not solicit, accept, or engage in concurrent outside 

employment which could be reasonably expected to impair independence of judgment in 

or faithful performance of official duties.  A commissioner or employee shall not provide 

services to an outside employer related to the commissioner or employee’s official duties.  

A commissioner or employee shall disclose any outside employment to the Authority 

board of commissioners upon initial appointment and annually thereafter. 
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Authority Property and Resources 

A commissioner or employee shall not use, request, or permit the use of Authority 

facilities, personnel, vehicles, equipment, tools, supplies, property, or resources for 

personal, private, or political activities or purposes. 

 

Political Activity 

A commissioner or employee shall not induce or attempt to induce any commissioner or 

employee to participate in a partisan election campaign, contribute to a candidate or 

political action committee, or engage in any other political activity relating to a particular 

party, candidate, or issue, or to refrain from engaging in any lawful political activity.  A 

commissioner or employee may encourage another to vote generally. A commissioner or 

employee shall not accept any compensation for services in any political activity related 

to any federal, state or local election for a candidate or issue. 

 

Third-Party Actions  
A commissioner or employee shall not assist or induce, or attempt to assist or induce, any 

person to violate any provision in the Ethics Policy.  A commissioner or employee shall 

not circumvent the Ethics Policy through the acts of another person. 

 

Interest in Contracts  
A commissioner or employee shall not have a private or personal financial interest in any 

contract with the Authority or in the sale to the Authority of any land, materials, supplies, 

or service.  A private or personal financial interest arises when a party to the contract or 

sale involves the commissioner or employee, or a parent, child or spouse, or a business 

entity in which the commissioner or employee, or a parent, child or spouse, owns 10% of 

the voting stock or shares, or of the fair market value of the business entity, or a business 

entity that is a subcontractor on an Authority contract, a partner, or a parent, or subsidiary 

business entity. 

 

Disclosure, Determination, and Resolution of Conflicts and Violations  
A commissioner or employee shall disclose any known conflicts of interest, proscribed 

relationships, or apparent or potential violations of the laws, HUD’s ACC, or Ethics 

Policy to the board of commissioners and executive director upon initial appointment or 

employment and annually upon the beginning of each fiscal year.  The Authority’s 

counsel shall prepare disclosure forms, and amendments as necessary or reasonable for 

approval of the board of commissioners.  The board of commissioners shall submit all 

disclosure forms to Authority counsel for review. Authority counsel shall determine 

whether there is any actual or potential conflict or violation of the laws, HUD’s ACC, or 

Ethics Policy, and recommend action by the board of commissioners or executive 

director to resolve any conflict or violation. 

 

Interpretation  
Actions subject to the Ethics Policy shall be opined by the counsel to the Authority based 

on the known facts and issues and reported to the board of commissioners and executive 
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director with recommended resolution of a conflict or violation of the law or general 

rules. 

 

Annual Trainings 

Commissioners are required to attend annual program and Board of Commissioners 

training to review the requirements of this Ethics Policy and their other responsibilities as 

Commissioners for Harris County Housing Authority.  

 

D.  SOURCES OF LAW AND POLICY 

 

Certain Texas laws govern the ethics of commissioners and employees of housing 

authorities. The Ethics Policy will be amended automatically to incorporate any 

legislative amendments to these statutes that become law. 

 

Texas Housing Authorities Law  

 

The Texas Housing Authorities Law, Tex. Local Government Code, Chapter 392, 

includes two provisions regarding conflicts of interest affecting commissioners and 

employees: 

 

Sec. 392.042.  Interested Commissioners. 

(a) In this section, "housing project" includes, in addition to the works or undertakings 

described by Subdivision (6) of Section 392.002: 

(1) a work or undertaking implemented for a reason described by Subdivision (6) of 

Section 392.002 that is financed in any way by public funds or tax-exempt revenue 

bonds; or 

(2) a building over which the housing authority has jurisdiction and of which a part 

is reserved for occupancy by persons who receive income or rental supplements 

from a governmental entity. 

(b) Except as provided by Subsection (c), a commissioner of an authority may not have 

dealings with a housing project for pecuniary gain and may not own, acquire, or control a 

direct or indirect interest in a: 

 (1) housing project; 

 (2) property included or planned to be included in a housing project; 

(3) contract or proposed contract for the sale of land to be used for a housing 

project; 

(4) contract or proposed contract for the construction of a housing project; or 

(5) contract or proposed contract for the sale of materials or services to be furnished 

or used in connection with a housing project. 

(c) A commissioner may: 

(1) manage a housing project; 

(2) own, acquire, or control a management company that renders management 

services to a housing project; 

(3) continue to own or control an interest in a housing project held by the 

commissioner before the commissioner's term of office began; or 
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(4) own, acquire, or control an interest in, or have dealings with, a housing project 

over which the commissioner's housing authority does not have jurisdiction. 

(d) If a commissioner manages, owns, acquires, or controls a direct or indirect interest in 

property included or planned to be included in a housing project or has any other dealings 

for pecuniary gain with a housing project, the commissioner shall immediately disclose 

the interest or dealings to the authority in writing.  The disclosure shall be entered in the 

minutes of the authority.  The failure to disclose the interest constitutes misconduct of 

office. 

(e) A commissioner who knowingly or intentionally violates Subsection (b) or (d) 

commits an offense.  An offense under this subsection is a felony of the third degree. 

(f) A person finally convicted under Subsection (e) is ineligible for future employment 

with the state, a political subdivision of the state, or a public corporation formed under 

the authority of the state or a political subdivision of the state. 

 

§ 392.043. Interested Employees 

(a) Except as provided by Subsection (b), (c), or (f), an employee of an authority may not 

have dealings with a housing project for pecuniary gain and may not own, acquire, or 

control a direct or indirect interest in a: 

(1) housing project; 

(2) property included or planned to be included in a housing project; 

(3) contract or proposed contract for the sale of land to be used for a housing 

project; 

(4) contract or proposed contract for the construction of a housing project; or 

(5) contract or proposed contract for the sale of materials or services to be furnished 

or used in connection with a housing project. 

(b) An employee may not have any dealings with a housing project for pecuniary gain 

except in the performance of duties as an employee of the housing authority. 

(c) Except as otherwise permitted by this chapter or another law, an employee of an 

authority may not be employed by or otherwise contract to provide services to another 

authority unless the first authority gives its written consent to the employment or 

contract. An employee of an authority who is employed by or who contracts to provide 

services to another authority under this subsection does not violate Subsection (a) or (b). 

(d) An employee who knowingly or intentionally violates Subsection (a) or (c) commits 

an offense. An offense under this subsection is a felony of the third degree. 

(e) A person finally convicted under Subsection (d) is ineligible for future employment 

with the state, a political subdivision of the state, or a public corporation formed under 

the authority of the state or a political subdivision of the state. 

(f) An employee of an authority may be a party to or otherwise participate in a contract or 

agreement for assistance under a housing program, including a contract or agreement for 

public housing, Section 8 housing assistance, low-interest home loans, lease-purchase 

assistance, or down payment assistance, to the same extent as a member of the public if 

the employee qualifies for assistance under the program. 

(g) In this section, "Section 8 housing assistance" means housing assistance provided 

under Section 8, United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. Section 1437f). 

 

Local Public Official Conflict of Interest 
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The Texas Government Code, Chapter 171, establishes conflict of interest boundaries for 

local public officials. Those applicable to housing authority commissioners and officers 

are included below: 

 

§ 171.001. Definitions 

In this chapter: 

(1) "Local public official" means a member of the governing body or another officer, 

whether elected, appointed, paid, or unpaid, of any district (including a school district), 

county, municipality, precinct, central appraisal district, transit authority or district, or 

other local governmental entity who exercises responsibilities beyond those that are 

advisory in nature. 

(2) "Business entity" means a sole proprietorship, partnership, firm, corporation, holding 

company, joint-stock company, receivership, trust, or any other entity recognized by law. 

 

§ 171.002. Substantial Interest in Business Entity 

(a) For purposes of this chapter, a person has a substantial interest in a business entity if: 

(1) the person owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the business 

entity or owns either 10 percent or more or $15,000 or more of the fair market value 

of the business entity; or 

(2) funds received by the person from the business entity exceed 10 percent of the 

person's gross income for the previous year. 

(b) A person has a substantial interest in real property if the interest is an equitable or 

legal ownership with a fair market value of $2,500 or more. 

(c) A local public official is considered to have a substantial interest under this section if 

a person related to the official in the first degree by consanguinity or affinity, as 

determined under Chapter 573, Government Code, has a substantial interest under this 

section. 

 

§ 171.003. Prohibited Acts; Penalty 

(a) A local public official commits an offense if the official knowingly: 

(1) violates Section 171.004; 

(2) acts as surety for a business entity that has work, business, or a contract with the 

governmental entity; or 

(3) acts as surety on any official bond required of an officer of the governmental 

entity. 

(b) An offense under this section is a Class A misdemeanor. 

 

§ 171.004. Affidavit and Abstention From Voting Required 

(a) If a local public official has a substantial interest in a business entity or in real 

property, the official shall file, before a vote or decision on any matter involving the 

business entity or the real property, an affidavit stating the nature and extent of the 

interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter if: 

(1) in the case of a substantial interest in a business entity the action on the matter 

will have a special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable 

from the effect on the public; or 
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(2) in the case of a substantial interest in real property, it is reasonably foreseeable 

that an action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the value of the 

property, distinguishable from its effect on the public. 

(b) The affidavit must be filed with the official record keeper of the governmental entity. 

(c) If a local public official is required to file and does file an affidavit under Subsection 

(a), the official is not required to abstain from further participation in the matter requiring 

the affidavit if a majority of the members of the governmental entity of which the official 

is a member is composed of persons who are likewise required to file and who do file 

affidavits of similar interests on the same official action. 

 

§ 171.005. Voting on Budget 

(a) The governing body of a governmental entity shall take a separate vote on any budget 

item specifically dedicated to a contract with a business entity in which a member of the 

governing body has a substantial interest. 

(b) Except as provided by Section 171.004(c), the affected member may not participate in 

that separate vote. The member may vote on a final budget if: 

(1) the member has complied with this chapter; and  

(2) the matter in which the member is concerned has been resolved. 

 

§ 171.006. Effect of Violation of Chapter 

The finding by a court of a violation under this chapter does not render an action of the 

governing body voidable unless the measure that was the subject of an action involving a 

conflict of interest would not have passed the governing body without the vote of the 

person who violated the chapter. 

 

§ 171.007. Common Law Preempted; Cumulative of Municipal Provisions 

(a) This chapter preempts the common law of conflict of interests as applied to local 

public officials. 

(b) This chapter is cumulative of municipal charter provisions and municipal ordinances 

defining and prohibiting conflicts of interests. 

 

§ 171.009. Service on Board of Corporation for No Compensation 

It shall be lawful for a local public official to serve as a member of the board of directors 

of private, nonprofit corporations when such officials receive no compensation or other 

remuneration from the nonprofit corporation or other nonprofit entity. 

 

Texas Nepotism Law  

 

The Texas Nepotism Law, Texas Government Code, Chapter 573, limits the relationships 

of a public official to employees and candidates for public positions: 

 

§ 573.001. Definitions 

In this chapter: 

(1) "Candidate" has the meaning assigned by Section 251.001, Election Code. 

(2) "Position" includes an office, clerkship, employment, or duty. 

(3) "Public official" means: 
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(A) an officer of this state or of a district, county, municipality, precinct, school 

district, or other political subdivision of this state; 

(B) an officer or member of a board of this state or of a district, county, 

municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of this state; or 

(C) a judge of a court created by or under a statute of this state. 

 

§ 573.002. Degrees of Relationship 

Except as provided by Section 573.043, this chapter applies to relationships within the 

third degree by consanguinity or within the second degree by affinity. 

 

SUBCHAPTER B. RELATIONSHIPS BY CONSANGUINITY OR BY AFFINITY 

 

§ 573.021. Method of Computing Degree of Relationship 

The degree of a relationship is computed by the civil law method. 

 

§ 573.022. Determination of Consanguinity 

(a) Two individuals are related to each other by consanguinity if: 

(1) one is a descendant of the other; or 

(2) they share a common ancestor. 

(b) An adopted child is considered to be a child of the adoptive parent for this purpose. 

 

§ 573.023. Computation of Degree of Consanguinity 

(a) The degree of relationship by consanguinity between an individual and the 

individual's descendant is determined by the number of generations that separate them. A 

parent and child are related in the first degree, a grandparent and grandchild in the second 

degree, a great-grandparent and great-grandchild in the third degree and so on. 

(b) If an individual and the individual's relative are related by consanguinity, but neither 

is descended from the other, the degree of relationship is determined by adding: 

(1) the number of generations between the individual and the nearest common 

ancestor of the individual and the individual's relative; and 

(2) the number of generations between the relative and the nearest common 

ancestor. 

(c) An individual's relatives within the third degree by consanguinity are the individual's: 

(1) parent or child (relatives in the first degree); 

(2) brother, sister, grandparent, or grandchild (relatives in the second degree); and 

(3) great-grandparent, great-grandchild, aunt who is a sister of a parent of the 

individual, uncle who is a brother of a parent of the individual, nephew who is a 

child of a brother or sister of the individual, or niece who is a child of a brother or 

sister of the individual (relatives in the third degree). 

 

§ 573.024. Determination of Affinity 

(a) Two individuals are related to each other by affinity if: 

(1) they are married to each other; or 

(2) the spouse of one of the individuals is related by consanguinity to the other 

individual. 
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(b) The ending of a marriage by divorce or the death of a spouse ends relationships by 

affinity created by that marriage unless a child of that marriage is living, in which case 

the marriage is considered to continue as long as a child of that marriage lives. 

(c) Subsection (b) applies to a member of the board of trustees of or an officer of a school 

district only until the youngest child of the marriage reaches the age of 21 years. 

 

§ 573.025. Computation of Degree of Affinity 

(a) A husband and wife are related to each other in the first degree by affinity. For other 

relationships by affinity, the degree of relationship is the same as the degree of the 

underlying relationship by consanguinity. For example: if two individuals are related to 

each other in the second degree by consanguinity, the spouse of one of the individuals is 

related to the other individual in the second degree by affinity. 

(b) An individual's relatives within the third degree by affinity are: 

(1) anyone related by consanguinity to the individual's spouse in one of the ways 

named in Section 573.023(c); and 

(2) the spouse of anyone related to the individual by consanguinity in one of the 

ways named in Section 573.023(c). 

 

SUBCHAPTER C. NEPOTISM PROHIBITIONS 

 

§ 573.041. Prohibition Applicable to Public Official 

A public official may not appoint, confirm the appointment of, or vote for the 

appointment or confirmation of the appointment of an individual to a position that is to be 

directly or indirectly compensated from public funds or fees of office if: 

(1) the individual is related to the public official within a degree described by 

Section 573.002; or 

(2) the public official holds the appointment or confirmation authority as a member 

of a state or local board, the legislature, or a court and the individual is related to 

another member of that board, legislature, or court within a degree described by 

Section 573.002. 

 

§ 573.062. Continuous Employment 

(a) A nepotism prohibition prescribed by Section 573.041 or by a municipal charter or 

ordinance does not apply to an appointment, confirmation of an appointment, or vote for 

an appointment or confirmation of an appointment of an individual to a position if: 

(1) the individual is employed in the position immediately before the election or 

appointment of the public official to whom the individual is related in a prohibited 

degree; and 

(2) that prior employment of the individual is continuous for at least: 

       (A) 30 days, if the public official is appointed; 

(B) six months, if the public official is elected at an election other than the 

general election for state and county officers; or 

(C) one year, if the public official is elected at the general election for 

state and county officers. 

(b) If, under Subsection (a), an individual continues in a position, the public official to 

whom the individual is related in a prohibited degree may not participate in any 
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deliberation or voting on the appointment, reappointment, confirmation of the 

appointment or reappointment, employment, reemployment, change in status, 

compensation, or dismissal of the individual if that action applies only to the individual 

and is not taken regarding a bona fide class or category of employees. 

 

SUBCHAPTER E. ENFORCEMENT 

 

§ 573.081. Removal In General 

(a) An individual who violates Subchapter C or Section 573.062(b) shall be removed 

from the individual's position. The removal must be made in accordance with the removal 

provisions in the constitution of this state, if applicable. If a provision of the constitution 

does not govern the removal, the removal must be by a quo warranto proceeding. 

(b) A removal from a position shall be made immediately and summarily by the original 

appointing authority if a criminal conviction against the appointee for a violation of 

Subchapter C or Section 573.062(b) becomes final. If the removal is not made within 30 

days after the date the conviction becomes final, the individual holding the position may 

be removed under Subsection (a). 

 

§ 573.082. Removal by Quo Warranto Proceeding 

(a) A quo warranto proceeding under this chapter must be brought by the attorney general 

in a district court in Travis County or in a district court of the county in which the 

defendant resides. 

(b) The district or county attorney of the county in which a suit is filed under this section 

shall assist the attorney general at the attorney general's discretion. 

 

§ 573.083. Withholding Payment of Compensation 

A public official may not approve an account or draw or authorize the drawing of a 

warrant or order to pay the compensation of an ineligible individual if the official knows 

the individual is ineligible. 

 

§ 573.084. Criminal Penalty 

(a) An individual commits an offense involving official misconduct if the individual 

violates Subchapter C or Section 573.062(b) or 573.083. 

(b) An offense under this section is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not less than 

$100 or more than $1,000. 

 

HUD Annual Contributions Contract 

 

The Annual Contributions Contract (Form HUD-53012A) (ACC) between HUD and the 

Housing Authority prohibits certain interests involving commissioners and employees: 

Section 19 – Conflict of Interest 
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(A)(1)  In addition to any other applicable conflict of interest requirements, neither the 

Authority nor any of its contractors or their contractors may enter into any contract, 

subcontract, or arrangement in connection with a project under this ACC in which any of 

the following classes of people has an interest, direct or indirect, during his or her tenure 

or for one year thereafter: 

(i) Any present or former member or officer of the governing body of the HA, or 

any member of the officer’s immediate family. There shall be excepted from this 

prohibition any present or former tenant commissioner who does not serve on the 

governing body of a resident corporation, and who otherwise does not occupy a 

policymaking position with the resident corporation, the Authority or a business 

entity. 

(ii) Any employee of the Authority who formulates policy or who influences 

decisions with respect to the project(s), or any member of the employee’s 

immediate family, or the employee’s partner. 

(iii) Any public official, member of the local governing body, or State or local 

legislator, or any member of such individual’s immediate family, who exercises 

functions or responsibilities with respect to the project(s) or the HA. 

(2)  Any member of these classes of persons must disclose the member’s interest or 

prospective interest to the Authority and HUD. 

(3)  The requirements of this subsection (A)(1) may be waived by HUD for good cause, if 

permitted under State and local law. No person for whom a waiver is requested may 

exercise responsibilities or functions with respect to the contract to which the waiver 

pertains. 

(4)  The provisions of this subsection (A) shall not apply to the General Depository 

Agreement entered into with an institution regulated by a Federal agency, or to utility 

service for which rates are fixed or controlled by a State or local agency. 

(5)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit a tenant of the Authority from serving on the 

governing body of the HA. 

 

(B)(1) The Authority may not hire an employee in connection with a project under this 

ACC if the prospective employee is an immediate family member of any person 

belonging to one of the following classes: 

(i) Any present or former member or officer of the governing body of the HA. There 

shall be excepted from this prohibition any former tenant commissioner who does 

not serve on the governing body of a resident corporation, and who otherwise does 

not occupy a policymaking position with the HA. 

(ii) Any employee of the Authority who formulates policy or who influences 

decisions with respect to the project(s). 

(iii) Any public official, member of the local governing body, or State or local 

legislator, who exercises functions or responsibilities with respect to the project(s) 

or the HA. 

(2)  The prohibition referred to in subsection (B)(1) shall remain in effect throughout the 

class member’s tenure and for one year thereafter. 

(3)  The class member shall disclose to the Authority and HUD the member’s familial 

relationship to the prospective employee. 
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(4)  The requirements of this subsection (B)(1) may be waived by the Authority Board of 

Commissioners for good cause, provided such waiver is permitted by State and local law. 

 

(C)  [applies only to an Indian Housing Authority] 

 

(D)  For purposes of this section, the term “immediate family member” means the spouse, 

mother, father, brother, sister, or child of a covered class member (whether related as a 

full blood relative, or as a “half” or “step” relative, e.g., a half-brother of stepchild). 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Partners 
Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd., 
which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations, 
partners' equity (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.   

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. as of December 31, 2018, and the results of 
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary information on pages 16 through 17 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
Atlanta, Georgia 
June 3, 2019
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Assets

Current assets

Cash 68,114$            
Prepaid expenses 17,017              

Total current assets 85,131              

Restricted deposits and funded reserves

Tenant security deposits 28,833              

Replacement reserve 134,828            
Real estate tax and insurance escrow 36,657              
Operating deficit reserve 235,329            

Total restricted deposits and funded reserves 435,647            

Rental property

Buildings and improvement 5,137,146         
Land improvements 1,556,649         
Furniture and equipment 974,923            

7,668,718         

Accumulated depreciation (3,842,493)        

Total rental property 3,826,225         

Other assets

Other intangibles, net 7,727                
Other assets, net 530                   
Prepaid ground lease, net 471,766            

Total other assets 480,023            

Total assets 4,827,026$       
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Liabilities and Partners' Equity (Deficit) X

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 25,051$            

Accrued expenses 2,121                

Property management fee payable 3,630                
Current maturities of long-term debt - first mortgage 75,424              

Total current liabilities 106,226            

Deposits and prepaid liability

Tenant security deposits 28,833              
Prepaid rent 1,128                

Total deposits and prepaid liability 29,961              

Long-term liabilities

Mortgages payable - first mortgage net of current maturities 2,618,140         
Mortgages payable - other mortgages 625,000            
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages - noncurrent 362,310            
Payable to limited partners 1,000                

Total long-term liabilities 3,606,450         

Commitments -                    

Partners' equity (deficit) 1,084,389         

Total liabilities and partners' equity (deficit) 4,827,026$       
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Revenue

Rental income 929,196$          
Vacancies and concessions (29,593)             
Other operating income 7,141                

Total revenue 906,744            

Operating expenses

Salaries and employee benefits 164,695            
Repairs and maintenance 166,397            
Utilities 57,330              
Property management fee 45,376              
Property insurance 45,460              
Miscellaneous operating expenses 59,488              

Total operating expenses 538,746            

Net operating income (loss) 367,998            

Other income (expense)

Interest income 2,317                
Interest expense - first mortgage (187,584)           
Interest expense - other loans (28,563)             
Other financial income (expense) (2,000)               
Miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)             
Annual fee to affiliate of limited partners (6,313)               
Other related party fees and expenses (96,000)             
Depreciation (232,821)           
Amortization (2,943)               

Total other income (expense) (564,067)           

Net loss (196,069)$         
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General Partner

Limited 

Partners

Total partners' 

equity (deficit)

Balance, January 1, 2018 (210)$                1,335,668$   1,335,458$   

Net loss (20)                    (196,049)       (196,069)       

Capital distributions -                    (15,100)         (15,100)         

Preferred return (31,920)             (7,980)           (39,900)         

Balance, December 31, 2018 (32,150)$           1,116,539$   1,084,389$   

Partners' percentage of partnership losses 0.01% 99.99% 100.00%
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (196,069)$ 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating 

Depreciation 232,821    
Amortization 2,943        
Amortization of debt issuance costs 7,448        
Land lease amortization 9,160        
Changes in:

Tenant accounts receivable 22             
Prepaid expenses (5,448)       
Accounts payable 15,953      
Accrued expenses 201           
Property management fee payable (182)         
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages 28,563      
Tenant security deposits (14)           
Prepaid rent 620           
Payable to limited partners (1,000)       

Net cash provided by operating activities 95,018      

Cash flows from investing activities
Expenditures on rental property (24,988)     
Change in real estate tax and insurance escrows 9,472        
Change in reserve for replacements (1,265)       
Change in operating deficit reserves (1,943)       

Net cash used in investing activities (18,724)     

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on mortgage payable (71,060)     
Distributions to partners (55,000)     

Net cash used in financing activities (126,060)   

Net decrease in cash (49,766)     

Cash, beginning 117,880    

Cash, end 68,114$    

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

180,136$  Cash paid for interest
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Note 1 - Organization and nature of operations 

Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. (the "Partnership") was organized under the laws of the 
State of Texas as a limited partnership on February 23, 2004.  On June 21, 2005, the Partnership 
agreement was amended and restated.  The Partnership's purpose is to invest in real estate and 
the construction, operation and sale or leasing of the Partnership property.  The Partnership's 
property consists of a 100-unit low-income apartment complex in Webster, Texas.  The project is 
known as Baybrook Retirement Center (the "Project").   

The general partner is HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC (the General Partner).  The limited partners (the 
Limited Partners) are Investors Affordable Housing Group V, Ltd. (the Class A Limited Partner), 
Hudson SLP, LLC (the Special Limited Partner) and Hudson Baybrook, LLC (the Investment 
Limited Partner).  The Partnership will operate until December 31, 2079, or until its earlier 
dissolution or termination. 

The terms of the Partnership agreement provide, among other things, that profits, losses and tax 
credits are shared 99.99 percent by the limited partners and .01 percent by the general partner.   

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies 

Basis of accounting 
The financial statements of the Partnership are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Accounts receivable and bad debts 
Tenant receivables are charged to bad debt expense when they are determined to be uncollectible 
based upon a periodic review of the accounts by management.  Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to recognize 
bad debts; however, the effect of using the direct write-off method is not materially different from the 
results that would have been obtained under the allowance method. 

Rental property 
Rental property is recorded at cost.  Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the 
cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives (40 years for buildings 
and improvements, 15 years for land improvements, and 7 or 5 years for furniture and equipment) 
using the straight-line method.  Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.  Upon disposal of depreciable property, the 
appropriate property accounts are reduced by the related costs and accumulated depreciation.  Any 
resulting gains and losses are reflected in the statement of operations. 

Estimated service lives are as follows: 

    Buildings and improvements  40 years 
    Land improvements   15 years 
    Furniture and equipment  5-7 years 
 
Impairment of long-lived assets 
In accordance with the accounting guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the 
Partnership reviews its rental property for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.  When recovery 
is reviewed, if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the property are less than 
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its carrying amount, management compares the carrying amount of the property to its fair value in 
order to determine whether an impairment loss has occurred.  The amount of the impairment loss is 
equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its estimated fair value. No impairment loss 
has been recognized during the year ended December 31, 2018. 

Amortization 
Tax credit monitoring fees are being amortized over the compliance period of the tax credits, other 
intangibles are being amortized over the term of the second mortgage and other assets are being 
amortized over the term of the interest rate cap loan.  Estimated amortization expense for each of 
the ensuing years through December 31, 2021 is $2,943, $2,943, and $1,841. 

Rental revenue 
Rental income is recognized as rentals become due.  Rental payments received in advance are 
deferred until earned.  All leases between the Partnership and the tenants of the property are 
operating leases. 

Debt issuance costs 
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct deduction from the 
face amount of the mortgage loan payable to which such costs relate.  Amortization of debt 
issuance costs is reported as a component of interest expense and is computed using an imputed 
interest rate on the related loan. 

Income taxes 
The Partnership has elected to be treated as a pass-through entity for income tax purposes and, as 
such, is not subject to income taxes. Rather, all items of taxable income, deductions and tax credits 
are passed through to and are reported by its owners on their respective income tax returns.  The 
Partnership's federal tax status as a pass-through entity is based on its legal status as a 
partnership. Accordingly, the Partnership is not required to take any tax positions in order to qualify 
as a pass-through entity. The Partnership is required to file and does file tax returns with the 
Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, these financial statements do 
not reflect a provision for income taxes and the Partnership has no other tax positions which must 
be considered for disclosure.  Income tax returns filed by the Partnership are subject to examination 
by the Internal Revenue Service for a period of three years. While no income tax returns are 
currently being examined by the Internal Revenue Service, tax years since 2015 remain open. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Advertising 
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. 

Reclassifications 
Certain items from the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year presentation. 



Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2018 

 
 

 
11 

Note 3 - Restricted deposits and funded reserves 

Operating reserve 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership was required to establish an operating 
reserve account to fund any operating deficits.  The sum of $175,000 from the proceeds of the third 
capital installment and from the proceeds of the fourth capital installment shall be initially deposited 
into the reserve.  The funds may be released to pay operating expenses with the approval of the 
special limited partner.  As of December 31, 2018, the balance of the operating reserve was 
$235,329. 

Security deposits 
Security deposits are deposited into the operating account and are generally held until termination 
of the leases, at which time some or all of the deposits may be returned to the lessees.  As of 
December 31, 2018, the tenant security deposit balance was $28,833. 

Insurance escrow 
In accordance with the loan agreement, the property is required to make monthly deposits to the 
insurance escrow.  Funds accumulated in this account are utilized to pay for the annual liability and 
property insurance bills.  As of December 31, 2018, the balance of this account was $36,657. 

Replacement reserve  
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership is required to make monthly deposits equal 
to $250 per apartment unit, of which $50 is required to be paid with funds from net cash available. 
The deposits to the replacement reserve are to be increased annually by changes in the consumer 
price index. Monthly deposits are placed into an interest-bearing account held by the Lender for 
major repairs and improvements of the Project. As of December 31, 2018, the balance of the 
replacement reserve was $134,828. 

Balance, January 1 133,563$          
Deposits 25,004              

Interest earnings 373                   

Withdrawals (24,112)             

Balance, December 31 134,828$          

 
Note 4 - Related party transactions 

Management fee 
The Project is currently managed by Investors Management Group, LLC, a related party of the 
Class A Limited Partner.  The management agreement provides, among other things, for a 
management fee of 5 percent of gross effective income collected from operations, provided that 20 
percent of the fee is subordinated to the payment of the Project’s debt service and other operating 
expenses.  As of December 31, 2018, $45,376 in fees had been earned and $3,630 remained 
payable. 

Incentive management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the General Partner and Class A Limited Partner may 
receive an annual, non-cumulative incentive partnership management fee equal to 11 percent of 
gross effective income and payable from net cash available for distribution.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2018, $96,000, of incentive management fees had been earned and paid.  
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Asset management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement and subject to the priority distributions of net cash flow, the 
Special Limited Partner may receive an annual cumulative asset management fee of $5,000, 
adjusted for the change in the consumer price index in effect on the date of adjustment over the 
date in effect on the date of adjustment over the date in effect twelve months prior, for its services in 
monitoring the operations of the Partnership.  For the year ended December 31, 2018, $6,313 was 
incurred and $- remained payable. 

Note 5 - Mortgage payable and note payable 

First mortgage payable 
On December 14, 2007, construction financing of $3,300,000 was converted to permanent 
financing for the Project from the Lender.  The mortgage loan bears interest at 6.44 percent, 
requires monthly principal and interest payments of $20,933 and is due and payable in 180 
consecutive monthly installments of principal and interest, commencing February 2008.  The loan 
matures on June 21, 2022.  The mortgage is collateralized by the Project.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2018, interest expense of $187,584 was incurred, which includes amortization of 
debt issuance costs of $7,448.  The loan balance associated with this loan at December 31, 2018 
was $2,720,073. The accrued interest balance associated with this loan at December 31, 2018 was 
$-.  

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $26,509 as of December 31, 2018 
are related to the first mortgage. Debt issuance costs on the above note are being amortized using 
an imputed rate of 6.85 percent.  

HOME loan payable 
In June 2005, the Partnership obtained a HOME loan in the total amount of $625,000 from Harris 
County Housing Authority. The HOME loan accrues interest on the outstanding balance at the 
applicable federal interest rate in place on the date of the agreement, which was 4.57 percent. The 
HOME loan matures on August 31, 2027, is collateralized by the Project, and is subordinate to the 
mortgage. Payments of principal and unpaid interest are required at maturity. As of December 31, 
2018, principal of $625,000 was outstanding. As of December 31, 2018, accrued interest of 
$362,310, was outstanding. 

Future expected principal payments on the mortgage are required as follows:  

Amegy Bank HCHA Total
2019 75,424$          -$                75,424$          
2020 80,004            -                  80,004            
2021 85,884            -                  85,884            
2022 2,478,761       -                  2,478,761       
2023 -                  -                  -                  
Thereafter -                  625,000          625,000          

Total 2,720,073$     625,000$        3,345,073       

Less current maturities (75,424)           

Net long-term portion 3,269,649$     
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Note 6 - Capital contributions  

Total investor limited partner capital contributions in accordance with the partnership agreement, as 
amended, are $4,626,774, of which all contributions have been received at December 31, 2018.   

Note 7 - Cash flow distribution 

Cash flow for each fiscal year after the first (1st) anniversary of the completion date shall be 
distributed or applied, as applicable, within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year, in the 
following order of priority: 

a. applied to the payment due to the Investment Partnership for any Operational Reduction 
amount due and owing; 

b. an amount equal to the payment due and owing toward the “Reserve Minimum 
Payment” equal to $50 per unit; 

c. to fund any deficiency in the operating reserve; 

d. to the payment of any accrued and unpaid asset management fee, in an amount equal 
to 1% of gross effective income; 

e. until the deferred development fee has been paid in full, to the payment of the deferred 
development fee; 

f. if there are any outstanding operating deficit loans, until such operating deficit loans 
have been paid in full, to the payment of the outstanding operating deficit loans and 
then, to the general partner or Class A limited partner, as applicable, until there shall 
have been cumulative distributions in the aggregate equal to the special capital 
contribution, if any; 

g. any remaining amount up to 90% of net cash flow to the payment of the incentive 
management fee; 

h. thereafter, any remaining to the partners in accordance with their respective interests 

Note 8 - Partnership guarantees 

Operating deficit guaranty 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, at any time during the period beginning upon the date 
breakeven operations is achieved and ending on the third anniversary of such date, the General 
Partner must provide funds to the Partnership as is necessary to pay operating deficits.  The 
General Partner is not obligated to provide funds in excess of $260,000, as defined.  Operating 
deficit loans bear no interest.  As of December 31, 2018, no amounts were funded. 

Note 9 - Concentration of credit risk 

The Partnership maintains cash with financial institutions.  The Partnership has not experienced 
any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance.  
Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these 
balances as of December 31, 2018. 
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Note 10 - Commitments 

Ground lease 
In June 2005, the Partnership entered into a 65-year ground lease with the Harris County Housing 
Authority, an affiliate of the general partner.  The initial payment for the ground lease was $595,427 
and is recognized over the term of the lease.  Under the terms of the agreement of the ground 
lease, the Partnership is required to make annual lease payments of $1,000 during the first 17 
years.  Beginning in year 18, the annual lease payment increases to $65,000 for the remaining term 
of the ground lease, with all but $1,000 of that waived, provided that the Project is leased to tenants 
in accordance with all applicable low-income housing requirements.  As of December 31, 2018, the 
prepaid ground lease was $471,766. 

The total ground lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 includes prepaid ground 
lease recognition of $9,160 and a rent payment of $1,000. 

Future minimum rental payments for each of the next five years and in the aggregate, are: 

2018 1,000$              

2019 1,000                

2020 1,000                

2021 1,000                

2022 1,000                

Thereafter 47,000              

52,000$            

 
Note 11 - Subsequent events 

Events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available to 
be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that 
provide evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date are recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions 
that existed after the balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. 
Management evaluated the activity of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. through June 3, 2019 
(the date the financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent 
events have occurred that would require recognition in the Financial Statements or disclosure in the 
Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Rental income

Rent revenue - gross potential 906,212$     

Garage and parking spaces 16,013         

Miscellaneous rent revenue 6,971           

Total rental income 929,196$     

Vacancies and concessions

Apartments vacancies 28,441$       
Rental concessions 1,152           

Total vacancies and concessions 29,593$       

Other operating income

Laundry and vending 1,380$         

Cable contract revenue 1,785           

Pet deposits 660              
Security deposit forfeitures 1,050           
Late fees 1,152           

Services income 515              

Miscellaneous other income 599              

Total other operating income 7,141$         

Salaries and employee benefits

Salaries - administrative 74,587$       
Salaries - maintenance 48,790         
Payroll taxes 17,348         
Health insurance and other benefits 18,618         

Workmen's compensation insurance 5,352           

Total salaries and employee benefits 164,695$     

Repairs and maintenance

Exterminating 6,098$         
Grounds 22,726         
Fire protection 35,920         
Security services/contract 2,264           
Supplies 7,992           
HVAC expense 6,946           

Painting - exterior 2,060           

Painting, decorating and cleaning 2,335           

Pool 1,934           

Repairs and maintenance - other than contracts 41,534         

Repairs and maintenance - contracts 13,448         

Elevator 13,047         

Carpeting 8,417           

Miscellaneous maintenance expenses 1,676           

Total repairs and maintenance 166,397$     
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Utilities

Electricity 18,244$       
Water 19,482         

Gas 3,105           

Other rent expense 6,337           

Telephone 9,353           

Cable 809              

Total utilities 57,330$       

Miscellaneous operating expenses

Office supplies and expense 13,809$       
Training and travel 644              
Telephone and answering service 476              

Credit collection and eviction 416              

Computer supplies and expense 3,572           

Bad debt expense 70                
Miscellaneous administrative 17,478         
Advertising and newspaper 4,665           
Special promotions 2,351           
Legal 1,072           

Audit 10,000         

Other professional fees 4,885           

Other taxes, licenses and insurance 50                

Total miscellaneous operating expenses 59,488$       

Interest expense - other loans

Interest expense - second mortgage 28,563$       

Total interest expense - other loans 28,563$       

Other financial income (expense)

Miscellaneous financial expenses (2,000)$        

Total other financial income (expense) (2,000)$        

Miscellaneous other income (expense)

Ground lease expense (10,160)$      

Total miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)$      

Other related party fees and expenses

Incentive management fee 96,000$       

Total other related party fees and expenses 96,000$       
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the General Partner 
Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd., 
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of 
operations, partners' equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.   

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 18 and 19 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

 
 
 
Atlanta, Georgia 
April 28, 2020
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Assets

2019 2018
Current assets

Cash 85,349$             68,114$             
Tenant accounts receivable 150                    -                    
Prepaid expenses 13,776               17,017               

Total current assets 99,275               85,131               

Restricted deposits and funded reserves
Tenant security deposits 28,393               28,833               
Replacement reserve 135,159             134,828             
Real estate tax and insurance escrow 27,082               36,657               
Operating deficit reserve 238,846             235,329             

Total restricted deposits and funded reserves 429,480             435,647             

Rental property
Buildings and improvement 5,137,146          5,137,146          
Land improvements 1,556,649          1,556,649          
Furniture and equipment 974,923             974,923             

7,668,718          7,668,718          
Accumulated depreciation (4,077,691)        (3,842,493)        

Total rental property 3,591,027          3,826,225          

Other assets
Other intangibles, net 4,784                 7,727                 
Other assets, net 530                    530                    
Prepaid ground lease, net 462,606             471,766             

Total other assets 467,920             480,023             

Total assets 4,587,702$        4,827,026$        
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Liabilities and Partners' Equity (Deficit) X

2019 2018
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 4,112$               25,051$             
Accrued expenses 4,619                 2,121                 
Property management fee payable 3,843                 3,630                 
Current maturities of long-term debt - first mortgage 80,004               75,424               

Total current liabilities 92,578               106,226             

Deposits and prepaid liability
Tenent security deposit 28,393               28,833               
Prepaid rent 2,480                 1,128                 

Total deposits and prepaid liability 30,873               29,961               

Long-term liabilities
Mortgages payable - first mortgage net of current maturities 2,545,196          2,618,140          
Mortgages payable - other mortgages 625,000             625,000             
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages - noncurrent 390,873             362,310             
Payable to affiliate of the general partner 1,000                 1,000                 

Total long-term liabilities 3,562,069          3,606,450          

Commitments -                    -                    

Partners' equity (deficit) 902,182             1,084,389          

Total liabilities and partners' equity (deficit) 4,587,702$        4,827,026$        
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2019 2018

Revenue
Rental income 952,762$           929,196$           
Vacancies and concessions (46,076)             (29,593)             
Other operating income 5,017                 7,141                 

Total revenue 911,703             906,744             

Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 163,470             164,695             
Repairs and maintenance 142,658             166,397             
Utilities 61,422               57,330               
Property management fee 45,596               45,376               
Property insurance 50,405               45,460               
Miscellaneous operating expenses 64,190               59,488               

Total operating expenses 527,741             538,746             

Net operating income (loss) 383,962             367,998             

Other income (expense)
Interest income 3,894                 2,317                 
Interest expense - first mortgage (182,831)           (187,584)           
Interest expense - other loans (28,563)             (28,563)             
Other financial income (expense) (2,000)               (2,000)               
Miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)             (10,160)             
Annual fee to affiliate of limited partners (6,408)               (6,313)               
Other related party fees and expenses (91,760)             (96,000)             
Depreciation (235,198)           (232,821)           
Amortization (2,943)               (2,943)               

Total other income (expense) (555,969)           (564,067)           

Net loss (172,007)$         (196,069)$         
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General Partner Limited Partners

Total partners' 

equity (deficit)

Balance, January 1, 2018 (210)$                1,335,668$        1,335,458$        

Net loss (20)                    (196,049)           (196,069)           

Distributions -                    (15,100)             (15,100)             

Preferred return (31,920)             (7,980)               (39,900)             

Balance, December 31, 2018 (32,150)             1,116,539          1,084,389          

Net loss (17)                    (171,990)           (172,007)           

Distributions -                    (10,200)             (10,200)             

Balance, December 31, 2019 (32,167)$           934,349$           902,182$           

Partners' percentage of partnership losses 0.01% 99.99% 100.00%
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2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss (172,007)$         (196,069)$         
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by 

Depreciation 235,198             232,821             
Amortization 2,943                 2,943                 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 7,477                 7,448                 
Land lease amortization 9,160                 9,160                 
Changes in:

Tenant accounts receivable (150)                  22                      
Prepaid expenses 3,241                 (5,448)               
Accounts payable (20,939)             15,953               
Accrued expenses 2,498                 201                    
Property management fee payable 213                    (182)                  
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages 28,563               28,563               
Tenant security deposits liability (440)                  262                    
Prepaid rent 1,352                 620                    

Payable to affiliate of the general partner -                    (1,000)               

Net cash provided by operating activities 97,109               95,294               

Cash flows from investing activities
Expenditures on rental property -                    (24,988)             
Change in real estate tax and insurance escrows 9,575                 9,472                 
Change in reserve for replacements 4,669                 3,721                 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 14,244               (11,795)             

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on mortgage payable (75,841)             (71,060)             
Distributions to partners (10,200)             (55,000)             

Net cash used in financing activities (86,041)             (126,060)           

Net increase in cash and restricted cash 25,312               (42,561)             

Cash and restricted cash, beginning 352,276             394,837             

Cash and restricted cash, end 377,588$           352,276$           

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

175,354$           180,136$           Cash paid for interest
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Note 1 - Organization and nature of operations 

Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. (the "Partnership") was organized under the laws of the 
State of Texas as a limited partnership on February 23, 2004.  On June 21, 2005, the Partnership 
agreement was amended and restated.  The Partnership's purpose is to invest in real estate and 
the construction, operation and sale or leasing of the Partnership property.  The Partnership's 
property consists of a 100-unit low-income apartment complex in Webster, Texas.  The project is 
known as Baybrook Retirement Center (the "Project").   

The general partner is HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC (the General Partner).  The limited partners (the 
Limited Partners) are Investors Affordable Housing Group V, Ltd. (the Class A Limited Partner), 
Hudson SLP, LLC (the Special Limited Partner) and Hudson Baybrook, LLC (the Investment 
Limited Partner).  The Partnership will operate until December 31, 2079, or until its earlier 
dissolution or termination. 

The terms of the Partnership agreement provide, among other things, that profits, losses and tax 
credits are shared 99.99 percent by the limited partners and .01 percent by the general partner.   

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies 

Basis of accounting 
The financial statements of the Partnership are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Accounts receivable and bad debts 
Tenant receivables are charged to bad debt expense when they are determined to be uncollectible 
based upon a periodic review of the accounts by management.  Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to recognize 
bad debts; however, the effect of using the direct write-off method is not materially different from the 
results that would have been obtained under the allowance method. 

Rental property 
Rental property is recorded at cost.  Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the 
cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives (40 years for buildings 
and improvements, 15 years for land improvements, and 7 or 5 years for furniture and equipment) 
using the straight-line method.  Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.  Upon disposal of depreciable property, the 
appropriate property accounts are reduced by the related costs and accumulated depreciation.  Any 
resulting gains and losses are reflected in the statement of operations. 

Estimated service lives are as follows: 

    Buildings and improvements  40 years 
    Land improvements   15 years 
    Furniture and equipment  5-7 years 
 
Impairment of long-lived assets 
In accordance with the accounting guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the 
Partnership reviews its rental property for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.  When recovery 
is reviewed, if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the property are less than 
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its carrying amount, management compares the carrying amount of the property to its fair value in 
order to determine whether an impairment loss has occurred.  The amount of the impairment loss is 
equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its estimated fair value. No impairment loss 
has been recognized during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Amortization 
Tax credit monitoring fees are being amortized over the compliance period of the tax credits, other 
intangibles are being amortized over the term of the second mortgage and other assets are being 
amortized over the term of the interest rate cap loan.  Estimated amortization expense for each of 
the ensuing years through December 31, 2021 is $2,943 and $1,841. 

Rental revenue 
Rental income is recognized as rentals become due.  Rental payments received in advance are 
deferred until earned.  All leases between the Partnership and the tenants of the property are 
operating leases. 

Debt issuance costs 
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct deduction from the 
face amount of the mortgage loan payable to which such costs relate.  Amortization of debt 
issuance costs is reported as a component of interest expense and is computed using an imputed 
interest rate on the related loan. 

Income taxes 
The Partnership has elected to be treated as a pass-through entity for income tax purposes and, as 
such, is not subject to income taxes. Rather, all items of taxable income, deductions and tax credits 
are passed through to and are reported by its owners on their respective income tax returns.  The 
Partnership's federal tax status as a pass-through entity is based on its legal status as a 
partnership. Accordingly, the Partnership is not required to take any tax positions in order to qualify 
as a pass-through entity. The Partnership is required to file and does file tax returns with the 
Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, these financial statements do 
not reflect a provision for income taxes and the Partnership has no other tax positions which must 
be considered for disclosure.  Income tax returns filed by the Partnership are subject to examination 
by the Internal Revenue Service for a period of three years. While no income tax returns are 
currently being examined by the Internal Revenue Service, tax years since 2016 remain open. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Advertising 
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. 

Reclassifications 
Certain items from the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year presentation. 
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Changes in accounting principles 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update 
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) ("ASU 2014-09"). Effective January 
2019, the Partnership adopted ASU 2014-09 on a retrospective basis.  The modifications under 
ASU 2014-09 were applied to all of the Partnership's contracts with customers.  No practical 
expedients were applied. The majority of the Partnership's revenue is derived from leases with 
tenants of the Property generally for terms of one year or less, which are accounted for in 
accordance with Leases (Topic 840).  Therefore, adoption of ASU 2014-09 had no impact on the 
recognition of rental revenue of the Property during the periods presented or on the opening 
balance of partners' equity (deficit) as of January 1, 2019 and 2018. 

In November 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards 
Update 2016-18 Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) - Restricted Cash ("ASU 2016-18") to 
address diversity in practice with respect to the cash flows presentation of changes in amounts 
described as restricted cash and cash equivalents. ASU 2016-18 requires a reporting entity to 
include amounts described as either restricted cash or restricted cash and cash equivalents 
(collectively referred to as "restricted cash" herein) when reconciling beginning and ending balances 
in its statement of cash flows. The update also amends Topic 230 to require disclosures about the 
nature of restricted cash and provide a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
between the balance sheet and the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 was adopted 
retrospectively during the year ended December 31, 2019. Consequently, ending cash and 
restricted cash as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 was increased from $68,114 to $352,276 and 
$117,880 to $394,837. 

Note 3 - Restricted deposits and funded reserves 

Operating reserve 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership was required to establish an operating 
reserve account to fund any operating deficits.  The sum of $175,000 from the proceeds of the third 
capital installment and from the proceeds of the fourth capital installment shall be initially deposited 
into the reserve.  The funds may be released to pay operating expenses with the approval of the 
special limited partner.  As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance of the operating reserve 
was $238,846 and $235,329. 

Security deposits 
Security deposits are deposited into the operating account and are generally held until termination 
of the leases, at which time some or all of the deposits may be returned to the lessees.  As of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the tenant security deposit balance was $28,393 and $28,833. 

Insurance escrow 
In accordance with the loan agreement, the property is required to make monthly deposits to the 
insurance escrow.  Funds accumulated in this account are utilized to pay for the annual liability and 
property insurance bills.  As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance of this account was 
$27,082 and $36,657. 

Replacement reserve  
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership is required to make monthly deposits equal 
to $250 per apartment unit, of which $50 is required to be paid with funds from net cash available. 
The deposits to the replacement reserve are to be increased annually by changes in the consumer 
price index. Monthly deposits are placed into an interest-bearing account held by the lender for 
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major repairs and improvements of the Project. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance of 
the replacement reserve was $135,159 and $134,828. 

2019 2018

Balance, January 1 134,828$           133,563$           

Deposits 25,005               25,004               

Interest earnings 376                    373                    

Withdrawals (25,050)             (24,112)             

Balance, December 31 135,159$           134,828$           

 
Note 4 - Related party transactions 

Management fee 
The Project is currently managed by Investors Management Group, LLC, a related party of the 
Class A Limited Partner.  The management agreement provides, among other things, for a 
management fee of 5 percent of gross effective income collected from operations, provided that 20 
percent of the fee is subordinated to the payment of the Project's debt service and other operating 
expenses.  As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, $45,596 and $45,376 in fees had been earned and 
$3,843 and $3,630 remained payable. 

Incentive management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the General Partner and Class A Limited Partner may 
receive an annual, non-cumulative incentive partnership management fee equal to 11 percent of 
gross effective income and payable from net cash available for distribution.  For the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, $91,760 and $96,000, of incentive management fees had been 
earned and paid.  

Asset management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement and subject to the priority distributions of net cash flow, the 
Special Limited Partner may receive an annual cumulative asset management fee of $5,000, 
adjusted for the change in the consumer price index in effect on the date of adjustment over the 
date in effect on the date of adjustment over the date in effect twelve months prior, for its services in 
monitoring the operations of the Partnership.  For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
$6,408 and $6,313 was incurred and $- and $- remained payable. 
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Note 5 - Statements of cash flows 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the balance 
sheets that sum to the total of the same such amounts in the statements of cash flows: 

2019 2018

Cash 85,349$    68,114$    

Deposits held in trust - funded 28,393 28,833 

Replacement reserve funds held by management 25,000 20,000 

Operating deficit reserve 238,846 235,329 
Total cash and restricted cash shown in 

statements of cash flows 377,588$       352,276$       

The amount included in restricted cash consists of security deposits held in trust for the future 
benefit of tenants upon moving out of the property, replacement reserves, and operating deficit 
reserves as required by regulatory authority. 

Note 6 - Mortgage payable and note payable 

First mortgage payable 
On December 14, 2007, construction financing of $3,300,000 was converted to permanent 
financing for the Project from the lender. The mortgage loan bears interest at 6.44 percent, requires 
monthly principal and interest payments of $20,933 and is due and payable in 180 consecutive 
monthly installments of principal and interest, commencing February 2008.  The loan matures on 
June 21, 2022. The mortgage is collateralized by the Project. For the years ended December 31, 
2019 and 2018, interest expense of $182,831 and $187,584 was incurred, which includes 
amortization of debt issuance costs of $7,477 and $7,448. The loan balance associated with this 
loan at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $2,644,232 and $2,720,073. The accrued interest 
balance associated with this loan at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $- and $-.  

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $19,032 and $26,509 as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 are related to the first mortgage. Debt issuance costs on the above 
note are being amortized using an imputed rate of 6.85 percent.  

HOME loan payable 
In June 2005, the Partnership obtained a HOME loan in the total amount of $625,000 from Harris 
County Housing Authority. The HOME loan accrues interest on the outstanding balance at the 
applicable federal interest rate in place on the date of the agreement, which was 4.57 percent. The 
HOME loan matures on August 31, 2027, is collateralized by the Project, and is subordinate to the 
mortgage. Payments of principal and unpaid interest are required at maturity. As of December 31, 
2019 and 2018, principal of $625,000 and $625,000 was outstanding. As of December 31, 2019 
and 2018, accrued interest of $390,873 and $362,310 was outstanding. 
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Future expected principal payments on the mortgage are required as follows:  

Amegy Bank HCHA Total

2020 80,004$             - 80,004$             

2021 85,884               - 85,884               

2022 2,478,761          - 2,478,761          

2023 - - -                    

2024 - - -                    

Thereafter 625,000             624,583             

Total 2,644,232$        625,000$           3,269,232          

Less current maturities (80,004)             

Net long-term portion 3,189,228$        

 
Note 7 - Capital contributions  

Total Investment Limited Partner capital contributions in accordance with the partnership 
agreement, as amended, are $4,626,774, of which all contributions have been received as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.   

Note 8 - Cash flow distribution 

Cash flow for each fiscal year after the first (1st) anniversary of the completion date shall be 
distributed or applied, as applicable, within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year, in the 
following order of priority: 

a. applied to the payment due to the Investment Partnership for any Operational Reduction 
amount due and owing; 

b. an amount equal to the payment due and owing toward the "Reserve Minimum 
Payment" equal to $50 per unit; 

c. to fund any deficiency in the operating reserve; 

d. to the payment of any accrued and unpaid asset management fee, in an amount equal 
to 1% of gross effective income; 

e. until the deferred development fee has been paid in full, to the payment of the deferred 
development fee; 

f. if there are any outstanding operating deficit loans, until such operating deficit loans 
have been paid in full, to the payment of the outstanding operating deficit loans and 
then, to the general partner or Class A limited partner, as applicable, until there shall 
have been cumulative distributions in the aggregate equal to the special capital 
contribution, if any; 

g. any remaining amount up to 90% of net cash flow to the payment of the incentive 
management fee; 
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h. thereafter, any remaining to the partners in accordance with their respective interests 

Note 9 - Partnership guarantees 

Operating deficit guaranty 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, at any time during the period beginning upon the date 
breakeven operations is achieved and ending on the third anniversary of such date, the General 
Partner must provide funds to the Partnership as is necessary to pay operating deficits.  The 
General Partner is not obligated to provide funds in excess of $260,000, as defined.  Operating 
deficit loans bear no interest.  As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no amounts were funded. 

Note 10 - Concentration of credit risk 

The Partnership maintains cash with financial institutions.  The Partnership has not experienced 
any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance.  
Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these 
balances as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Note 11 - Commitments 

Ground lease 
In June 2005, the Partnership entered into a 65-year ground lease with the Harris County Housing 
Authority, an affiliate of the General Partner.  The initial payment for the ground lease was $595,427 
and is recognized over the term of the lease.  Under the terms of the agreement of the ground 
lease, the Partnership is required to make annual lease payments of $1,000 during the first 17 
years.  Beginning in year 18, the annual lease payment increases to $65,000 for the remaining term 
of the ground lease, with all but $1,000 of that waived, provided that the Project is leased to tenants 
in accordance with all applicable low-income housing requirements.  As of December 31, 2019 and 
2018, the prepaid ground lease was $462,606 and $471,766. 

The total ground lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 includes prepaid 
ground lease recognition of $9,160 and $9,160 and a rent payment of $1,000 and $1,000. As of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, lease payable of $1,000 and $1,000, respectively, remain 
outstanding. 

Future minimum rental payments for each of the next five years and in the aggregate, are: 

2020 1,000$              

2021 1,000                
2022 1,000                
2023 1,000                
2024 1,000                

Thereafter 46,000              

51,000$            
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Note 12 - Litigation 

The Partnership is subject to litigation from time to time arising in the ordinary course of business. 
These matters are frequently covered by insurance. If it has been determined that a loss is probable 
to occur and can be reasonably estimated, the estimated amount of the loss is recorded in the 
financial statements. While the resolution of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, 
management currently believes the final outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse 
effect on the financial position or results of operations from the Partnership. 

Note 13 - Subsequent events 

Events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available to 
be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that 
provide evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date are recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions 
that existed after the balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. 
Management evaluated the activity of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. through April 28, 
2020 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no 
subsequent events other than the subsequent event discussed below have occurred that would 
require recognition in the Financial Statements or disclosure in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

The spread of the novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) in the first quarter of 2020 has caused 
significant volatility in the U.S. markets. There is significant uncertainty around the breadth and 
duration of business disruptions related to COVID-19, as well as its impact on the U.S. economy. 
The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Partnership's operational and financial performance 
will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, and the 
impact on customers, employees, vendors and rent collections, all of which are uncertain and 
cannot be determined at this time. 
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2019 2018

Rental income

Rent revenue - gross potential 935,717$           906,212$           
Garage and parking spaces 13,930               16,013               
Miscellaneous rent revenue 3,115                 6,971                 

Total rental income 952,762$           929,196$           

Vacancies and concessions

Apartments vacancies 45,926$             28,441$             
Rental concessions 150                    1,152                 

Total vacancies and concessions 46,076$             29,593$             

Other operating income

Laundry and vending 1,092$               1,380$               
Cable contract revenue -                     1,785                 
Pet deposits 450                    660                    
Security deposit forfeitures 625                    1,050                 
Late fees 1,718                 1,152                 
Services income 450                    515                    
Miscellaneous other income 682                    599                    

Total other operating income 5,017$               7,141$               

Salaries and employee benefits

Salaries - administrative 75,142$             74,587$             
Salaries - maintenance 51,708               48,790               
Payroll taxes 15,690               17,348               
Health insurance and other benefits 16,088               18,618               
Workmen's compensation insurance 4,842                 5,352                 

Total salaries and employee benefits 163,470$           164,695$           

Repairs and maintenance

Exterminating 4,116$               6,098$               
Grounds 23,827               22,726               
Fire protection 5,629                 35,920               
Security services/contract 2,296                 2,264                 
Supplies 12,642               7,992                 
HVAC expense 13,899               6,946                 
Painting - exterior 3,554                 2,060                 
Painting, decorating and cleaning 1,348                 2,335                 
Pool 4,807                 1,934                 
Repairs and maintenance - other than contracts 29,445               41,534               
Repairs and maintenance - contracts 7,484                 13,448               
Elevator 23,223               13,047               
Carpeting 8,105                 8,417                 
Miscellaneous maintenance expenses 2,283                 1,676                 

Total repairs and maintenance 142,658$           166,397$           
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Utilities

Electricity 19,389$             18,244$             
Water 21,160               19,482               
Gas 3,432                 3,105                 
Other rent expense 7,083                 6,337                 
Telephone 9,560                 9,353                 
Cable 798                    809                    

Total utilities 61,422$             57,330$             

Miscellaneous operating expenses

Office supplies and expense 5,151$               13,809$             
Training and travel 741                    644                    
Telephone and answering service 476                    476                    
Credit collection and eviction 460                    416                    
Computer supplies and expense 3,467                 3,572                 
Bad debt expense 2,111                 70                      
Miscellaneous administrative 16,726               17,478               
Advertising and newspaper 6,548                 4,665                 
Special promotions 2,562                 2,351                 
Legal 11,589               1,072                 
Audit 9,750                 10,000               
Other professional fees 4,609                 4,885                 
Other taxes, licenses and insurance -                     50                      

Total miscellaneous operating expenses 64,190$             59,488$             

Interest expense - other loans

Interest expense - second mortgage 28,563$             28,563$             

Total interest expense - other loans 28,563$             28,563$             

Other financial income (expense)

Miscellaneous financial expenses (2,000)$              (2,000)$              

Total other financial income (expense) (2,000)$              (2,000)$              

Miscellaneous other income (expense)

Ground lease expense (10,160)$            (10,160)$            

Total miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)$            (10,160)$            

Other related party fees and expenses

Incentive management fee 91,760$             96,000$             

Total other related party fees and expenses 91,760$             96,000$             
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the General Partner 
Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd., 
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of 
operations, partners' equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying 2020 and 2019 supplementary information on pages 17 and 18 is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 
Atlanta, Georgia 
April 27, 2021 
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Assets

2020 2019
Current assets

Cash 111,552$           85,349$             
Tenant accounts receivable 966                    150                    
Prepaid expenses 20,554               13,776               

Total current assets 133,072             99,275               

Restricted deposits and funded reserves
Tenant security deposits 27,460               28,393               
Replacement reserve 135,134             135,159             
Real estate tax and insurance escrow 32,203               27,082               
Operating deficit reserve 240,316             238,846             

Total restricted deposits and funded reserves 435,113             429,480             

Rental property
Buildings and improvement 5,137,146          5,137,146          
Land improvements 1,556,649          1,556,649          
Furniture and equipment 974,923             974,923             

7,668,718          7,668,718          
Accumulated depreciation (4,312,889)        (4,077,691)        

Total rental property 3,355,829          3,591,027          

Other assets
Other intangibles, net 1,841                 4,784                 
Other assets, net 530                    530                    
Prepaid ground lease, net 453,446             462,606             

Total other assets 455,817             467,920             

Total assets 4,379,831$        4,587,702$        
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Liabilities and Partners' Equity (Deficit)

2020 2019
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 13,696$           4,112$             
Accrued expenses 7,558              4,619               
Property management fee payable 3,833              3,843               
Current maturities of long-term debt - first mortgage 85,884            80,004             

Total current liabilities 110,971          92,578             

Deposits and prepaid liability
Tenent security deposit 27,460            28,393             
Prepaid rent 501                  2,480               

Total deposits and prepaid liability 27,961            30,873             

Long-term liabilities
Mortgages payable - first mortgage net of current maturities 2,466,357       2,545,196        
Mortgages payable - other mortgages 625,000          625,000           
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages - noncurrent 419,436          390,873           
Payable to affiliate of the general partner 1,000              1,000               

Total long-term liabilities 3,511,793       3,562,069        

Commitments -                   -                   

Partners' equity (deficit) 729,106          902,182           

Total liabilities and partners' equity (deficit) 4,379,831$       4,587,702$       
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2020 2019

Revenue
Rental income 974,838$         952,762$         
Vacancies and concessions (46,967)           (46,076)            
Other operating income 9,675              5,017               

Total revenue 937,546          911,703           

Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 165,960          163,470           
Repairs and maintenance 147,242          142,658           
Utilities 66,093            61,422             
Property management fee 46,821            45,596             
Property insurance 55,751            50,405             
Miscellaneous operating expenses 52,325            64,190             

Total operating expenses 534,192          527,741           

Net operating income (loss) 403,354          383,962           

Other income (expense)
Interest income 1,594              3,894               
Interest expense - first mortgage (178,237)         (182,831)          
Interest expense - other loans (28,563)           (28,563)            
Other financial income (expense) (1,417)             (2,000)              
Miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)           (10,160)            
Annual fee to affiliate of limited partners (6,506)             (6,408)              
Other related party fees and expenses (100,300)         (91,760)            
Depreciation (235,198)         (235,198)          
Amortization (2,943)             (2,943)              

Total other income (expense) (561,730)         (555,969)          

Net loss (158,376)$         (172,007)$         
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General Partner Limited Partners
Total partners' 
equity (deficit)

Balance, January 1, 2019 (32,150)$          1,116,539$      1,084,389$      

Net loss (17)                  (171,990)         (172,007)          

Distributions -                  (10,200)           (10,200)            

Balance, December 31, 2019 (32,167)           934,349          902,182           

Net loss (16)                  (158,360)         (158,376)          

Distributions (2,560)             (12,140)           (14,700)            

Balance, December 31, 2020 (34,743)$           763,849$          729,106$          

Partners' percentage of partnership losses 0.01% 99.99% 100.00%
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2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss (158,376)$        (172,007)$        
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by 
operating activities

Depreciation 235,198          235,198           
Amortization 2,943              2,943               
Amortization of debt issuance costs 7,488              7,477               
Land lease amortization 9,160              9,160               
Changes in:

Tenant accounts receivable (816)                 (150)                 
Prepaid expenses (6,778)             3,241               
Accounts payable 9,584              (20,939)            
Accrued expenses 2,939              2,498               
Property management fee payable (10)                   213                  
Accrued interest payable - other mortgages 28,563            28,563             
Tenant security deposits liability (933)                 (440)                 
Prepaid rent (1,979)             1,352               

Net cash provided by operating activities 126,983          97,109             

Cash flows from investing activities
Change in real estate tax and insurance escrows (5,121)             9,575               
Change in reserve for replacements 5,025              4,669               

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (96)                   14,244             

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on mortgage payable (80,447)           (75,841)            
Distributions to partners (14,700)           (10,200)            

Net cash used in financing activities (95,147)           (86,041)            

Net increase in cash and restricted cash 31,740            25,312             

Cash and restricted cash, beginning 377,588          352,276           

Cash and restricted cash, end 409,328$          377,588$          

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

170,749$         175,354$         Cash paid for interest
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Note 1 - Organization and nature of operations 

Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. (the "Partnership") was organized under the laws of the 
State of Texas as a limited partnership on February 23, 2004. On June 21, 2005, the Partnership 
agreement was amended and restated. The Partnership's purpose is to invest in real estate and the 
construction, operation and sale or leasing of the Partnership property. The Partnership's property 
consists of a 100-unit low-income apartment complex in Webster, Texas. The project is known as 
Baybrook Retirement Center (the "Project").  

The general partner is HCHA Baybrook Park, LLC (the General Partner). The limited partners (the 
Limited Partners) are Investors Affordable Housing Group V, Ltd. (the Class A Limited Partner), 
Hudson SLP, LLC (the Special Limited Partner) and Hudson Baybrook, LLC (the Investment 
Limited Partner). The Partnership will operate until December 31, 2079, or until its earlier 
dissolution or termination. 

The terms of the Partnership agreement provide, among other things, that profits, losses and tax 
credits are shared 99.99 percent by the limited partners and .01 percent by the general partner.  

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies 

Basis of accounting 
The financial statements of the Partnership are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Accounts receivable and bad debts 
Tenant receivables are charged to bad debt expense when they are determined to be uncollectible 
based upon a periodic review of the accounts by management. Accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to recognize 
bad debts; however, the effect of using the direct write-off method is not materially different from the 
results that would have been obtained under the allowance method. 

Rental property 
Rental property is recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the 
cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives (40 years for buildings 
and improvements, 15 years for land improvements, and 7 or 5 years for furniture and equipment) 
using the straight-line method. Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Upon disposal of depreciable property, the 
appropriate property accounts are reduced by the related costs and accumulated depreciation. Any 
resulting gains and losses are reflected in the statement of operations. 

Estimated service lives are as follows: 

    Buildings and improvements  40 years 
    Land improvements   15 years 
    Furniture and equipment  5-7 years 
 
Impairment of long-lived assets 
In accordance with the accounting guidance for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the 
Partnership reviews its rental property for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. When recovery 
is reviewed, if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the property are less than 
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its carrying amount, management compares the carrying amount of the property to its fair value in 
order to determine whether an impairment loss has occurred. The amount of the impairment loss is 
equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its estimated fair value. No impairment loss 
has been recognized during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

Amortization 
Tax credit monitoring fees are being amortized over the compliance period of the tax credits, other 
intangibles are being amortized over the term of the second mortgage and other assets are being 
amortized over the term of the interest rate cap loan. Estimated amortization expense for each of 
the ensuing years through December 31, 2021 is $1,841. 

Rental revenue 
Rental income is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in advance are 
deferred until earned. All leases between the Partnership and the tenants of the property are 
operating leases. 

Debt issuance costs 
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct deduction from the 
face amount of the mortgage loan payable to which such costs relate. Amortization of debt issuance 
costs is reported as a component of interest expense and is computed using an imputed interest 
rate on the related loan. 

Income taxes 
The Partnership has elected to be treated as a pass-through entity for income tax purposes and, as 
such, is not subject to income taxes. Rather, all items of taxable income, deductions and tax credits 
are passed through to and are reported by its owners on their respective income tax returns. The 
Partnership's federal tax status as a pass-through entity is based on its legal status as a 
partnership. Accordingly, the Partnership is not required to take any tax positions in order to qualify 
as a pass-through entity. The Partnership is required to file and does file tax returns with the 
Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, these financial statements do 
not reflect a provision for income taxes and the Partnership has no other tax positions which must 
be considered for disclosure. Income tax returns filed by the Partnership are subject to examination 
by the Internal Revenue Service for a period of three years. While no income tax returns are 
currently being examined by the Internal Revenue Service, tax years since 2017 remain open. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Advertising 
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. 

Reclassifications 
Certain items from the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year presentation. 
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Note 3 - Restricted deposits and funded reserves 

Operating deficit reserve 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership was required to establish an operating 
reserve account to fund any operating deficits. The sum of $175,000 from the proceeds of the third 
capital installment and from the proceeds of the fourth capital installment shall be initially deposited 
into the reserve. The funds may be released to pay operating expenses with the approval of the 
special limited partner. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance of the operating reserve 
was $240,316 and $238,846. 

Security deposits 
Security deposits are deposited into the operating account and are generally held until termination 
of the leases, at which time some or all of the deposits may be returned to the lessees. As of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the tenant security deposit balance was $27,460 and $28,393. 

Insurance escrow 
In accordance with the loan agreement, the property is required to make monthly deposits to the 
insurance escrow. Funds accumulated in this account are utilized to pay for the annual liability and 
property insurance bills. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance of this account was 
$32,203 and $27,082. 

Replacement reserve 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the Partnership is required to make monthly deposits equal 
to $250 per apartment unit, of which $50 is required to be paid with funds from net cash available. 
The deposits to the replacement reserve are to be increased annually by changes in the consumer 
price index. Monthly deposits are placed into an interest-bearing account held by the lender for 
major repairs and improvements of the Project. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance of 
the replacement reserve was $135,134 and $135,159. 

2020 2019

Balance, January 1 135,159$           134,828$           
Deposits 25,004               25,005               
Interest earnings 124                    376                    
Withdrawals (25,153)             (25,050)             

Balance, December 31 135,134$           135,159$           

 
Note 4 - Related party transactions 

Management fee 
The Project is currently managed by Investors Management Group, LLC, a related party of the 
Class A Limited Partner. The management agreement provides, among other things, for a 
management fee of 5 percent of gross effective income collected from operations, provided that 20 
percent of the fee is subordinated to the payment of the Project's debt service and other operating 
expenses. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, $46,821 and $45,596 in fees had been earned and 
$3,833 and $3,843 remained payable. 

Incentive management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the General Partner and Class A Limited Partner may 
receive an annual, non-cumulative incentive partnership management fee equal to 11 percent of 
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gross effective income and payable from net cash available for distribution. For the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, $100,300 and $91,760, of incentive management fees had been 
earned and paid.  

Asset management fee 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement and subject to the priority distributions of net cash flow, the 
Special Limited Partner may receive an annual cumulative asset management fee of $5,000, 
adjusted for the change in the consumer price index in effect on the date of adjustment over the 
date in effect on the date of adjustment over the date in effect twelve months prior, for its services in 
monitoring the operations of the Partnership. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
$6,506 and $6,408 was incurred and $- and $- remained payable. 

Note 5 - Statements of cash flows 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within the balance 
sheets that sum to the total of the same such amounts in the statements of cash flows: 

2020 2019

Cash 111,552$           85,349$             
Deposits held in operating reserve 27,460               28,393               

Replacement reserve funds held by management 30,000               25,000               
Operating deficit reserve 240,316             238,846             

Total cash and restricted cash shown in statements 

of cash flows 409,328$           377,588$           

 
The amount included in restricted cash consists of security deposits held in the operating reserve 
for the future benefit of tenants upon moving out of the property, replacement reserves, and 
operating deficit reserves as required by regulatory authority. 

Note 6 - Mortgage payable and note payable 

First mortgage payable 
On December 14, 2007, construction financing of $3,300,000 was converted to permanent 
financing for the Project from the lender. The mortgage loan bears interest at 6.44 percent, requires 
monthly principal and interest payments of $20,933 and is due and payable in 180 consecutive 
monthly installments of principal and interest, commencing February 2008. The loan matures on 
June 21, 2022. The mortgage is collateralized by the Project. For the years ended December 31, 
2020 and 2019, interest expense of $178,237 and $182,831 was incurred, which includes 
amortization of debt issuance costs of $7,488 and $7,447. The loan balance associated with this 
loan at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $2,563,785 and $2,644,232. The accrued interest 
balance associated with this loan at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $- and $-.  

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $11,544 and $19,032 as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are related to the first mortgage. Debt issuance costs on the above 
note are being amortized using an imputed rate of 6.85 percent.  



Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 

 
 

 
13 

HOME loan payable 
In June 2005, the Partnership obtained a HOME loan in the total amount of $625,000 from Harris 
County Housing Authority. The HOME loan accrues interest on the outstanding balance at the 
applicable federal interest rate in place on the date of the agreement, which was 4.57 percent. The 
HOME loan matures on August 31, 2027, is collateralized by the Project, and is subordinate to the 
mortgage. Payments of principal and unpaid interest are required at maturity. As of December 31, 
2020 and 2019, principal of $625,000 and $625,000 was outstanding. As of December 31, 2020 
and 2019, accrued interest of $419,435 and $390,873, was outstanding. 

Future expected principal payments on the mortgage are required as follows:  

Amegy Bank HCHA Total

2021 85,884$             -$                  85,884$             
2022 2,477,901          -                    2,477,901          
2023 -                    -                    -                    
2024 -                    -                    -                    
2025 -                    -                    -                    
Thereafter -                    625,000             624,583             

Total 2,563,785$        625,000$           3,188,368          

Less current maturities (85,884)             

Net long-term portion 3,102,484$        

 
Note 7 - Capital contributions  

Total Investment Limited Partner capital contributions in accordance with the partnership 
agreement, as amended, are $4,626,774, of which all contributions have been received as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  

Note 8 - Cash flow distribution 

Cash flow for each fiscal year after the first (1st) anniversary of the completion date shall be 
distributed or applied, as applicable, within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year, in the 
following order of priority: 

a. applied to the payment due to the Investment Partnership for any Operational Reduction 
amount due and owing; 

b. an amount equal to the payment due and owing toward the "Reserve Minimum Payment" 
equal to $50 per unit; 

c. to fund any deficiency in the operating reserve; 

d. to the payment of any accrued and unpaid asset management fee, in an amount equal to 
1% of gross effective income; 

e. until the deferred development fee has been paid in full, to the payment of the deferred 
development fee; 
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f. if there are any outstanding operating deficit loans, until such operating deficit loans have 
been paid in full, to the payment of the outstanding operating deficit loans and then, to the 
general partner or Class A limited partner, as applicable, until there shall have been 
cumulative distributions in the aggregate equal to the special capital contribution, if any; 

g. any remaining amount up to 90% of net cash flow to the payment of the incentive 
management fee; 

h. thereafter, any remaining to the partners in accordance with their respective interests 

Note 9 - Partnership guarantees 

Operating deficit guaranty 
Pursuant to the partnership agreement, at any time during the period beginning upon the date 
breakeven operations is achieved and ending on the third anniversary of such date, the General 
Partner must provide funds to the Partnership as is necessary to pay operating deficits. The 
General Partner is not obligated to provide funds in excess of $260,000, as defined. Operating 
deficit loans bear no interest. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, no amounts were funded. 

Note 10 - Concentration of credit risk 

The Partnership maintains cash with financial institutions. The Partnership has not experienced any 
losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance. Management 
believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these balances as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

Note 11 - Commitments 

Ground lease 
In June 2005, the Partnership entered into a 65-year ground lease with the Harris County Housing 
Authority, an affiliate of the General Partner. The initial payment for the ground lease was $595,427 
and is recognized over the term of the lease. Under the terms of the agreement of the ground lease, 
the Partnership is required to make annual lease payments of $1,000 during the first 17 years. 
Beginning in year 18, the annual lease payment increases to $65,000 for the remaining term of the 
ground lease, with all but $1,000 of that waived, provided that the Project is leased to tenants in 
accordance with all applicable low-income housing requirements. As of December 31, 2020 and 
2019, the prepaid ground lease was $453,446 and $462,606. 

The total ground lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 includes prepaid 
ground lease recognition of $9,160 and $9,160 and a rent payment of $1,000 and $1,000. As of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, lease payable of $2,000 and $1,000, respectively, remain 
outstanding. 
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Future minimum rental payments for each of the next five years and in the aggregate, are: 

2021 1,000$               
2022 1,000                 
2023 1,000                 
2024 1,000                 
2025 1,000                 

Thereafter 45,000               

50,000$             

 
Note 12 - Litigation 

The Partnership is subject to litigation from time to time arising in the ordinary course of business. 
These matters are frequently covered by insurance. If it has been determined that a loss is probable 
to occur and can be reasonably estimated, the estimated amount of the loss is recorded in the 
financial statements. While the resolution of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, 
management currently believes the final outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse 
effect on the financial position or results of operations from the Partnership. 

Note 13 - Subsequent events 

Events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available to 
be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that 
provide evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date are recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions 
that existed after the balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. 
Management evaluated the activity of Baybrook Park Retirement Center, Ltd. through April 27, 
2021 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no 
subsequent events other than the subsequent even discussed below have occurred that would 
require recognition in the Financial Statements or disclosure in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

In early 2020, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus ("COVID-19") emerged globally. As a 
result, events have occurred including mandates from federal, state and local authorities leading to 
an overall decline in economic activity which could result in a loss of lease revenue and other 
material adverse effects to the Partnership's financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. 
As of December 31, 2020, the global pandemic is still ongoing. Management continues to monitor 
the results of operations to evaluate the economic impact of the pandemic on the project. 
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2020 2019

Rental income

Rent revenue - gross potential 957,312$           935,717$           
Garage and parking spaces 14,043               13,930               
Miscellaneous rent revenue 3,483                 3,115                 

Total rental income 974,838$           952,762$           

Vacancies and concessions

Apartments vacancies 46,807$             45,926$             
Rental concessions 160                    150                    

Total vacancies and concessions 46,967$             46,076$             

Other operating income

Laundry and vending 909$                  1,092$               
Tenant charges 423                    -                     
Cable contract revenue 4,748                 -                     
Pet deposits 450                    450                    
Security deposit forfeitures 960                    625                    
Late fees 15                      1,718                 
Services income 600                    450                    
Miscellaneous other income 1,570                 682                    

Total other operating income 9,675$               5,017$               

Salaries and employee benefits

Salaries - administrative 73,715$             75,142$             
Salaries - maintenance 51,149               51,708               
Payroll taxes 17,176               15,690               
Health insurance and other benefits 18,460               16,088               
Workmen's compensation insurance 5,460                 4,842                 

Total salaries and employee benefits 165,960$           163,470$           

Repairs and maintenance

Exterminating 4,462$               4,116$               
Grounds 27,690               23,827               
Fire protection 7,372                 5,629                 
Security services/contract 1,232                 2,296                 
Supplies 13,347               12,642               
HVAC expense 20,883               13,899               
Painting - exterior 3,140                 3,554                 
Painting, decorating and cleaning 4,713                 1,348                 
Pool 4,289                 4,807                 
Repairs and maintenance - other than contracts 33,594               29,445               
Repairs and maintenance - contracts 4,210                 7,484                 
Elevator 12,894               23,223               
Carpeting 8,073                 8,105                 
Miscellaneous maintenance expenses 1,343                 2,283                 

Total repairs and maintenance 147,242$           142,658$           
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2020 2019
Utilities

Electricity 17,603$            19,389$            
Water 25,507             21,160              
Gas 3,172                3,432                
Other rent expense 8,941                7,083                
Telephone 9,964                9,560                
Cable 906                   798                   

Total utilities 66,093$             61,422$             

Miscellaneous operating expenses
Office supplies and expense 2,501$               5,151$              
Training and travel 462                   741                   
Telephone and answering service 436                   476                   
Credit collection and eviction 441                   460                   
Computer supplies and expense 3,190                3,467                
Bad debt expense 658                   2,111                
Miscellaneous administrative 18,458             16,726              
Advertising and newspaper 7,282                6,548                
Special promotions 2,773                2,562                
Legal 181                   11,589              
Audit 9,750                9,750                
Other professional fees 5,868                4,609                
Other taxes, licenses and insurance 325                   -                    

Total miscellaneous operating expenses 52,325$             64,190$             

Interest expense - other loans
Interest expense - second mortgage 28,563$            28,563$            

Total interest expense - other loans 28,563$             28,563$             

Other financial income (expense)
Miscellaneous financial expenses (1,417)$              (2,000)$             

Total other financial income (expense) (1,417)$              (2,000)$              

Miscellaneous other income (expense)
Ground lease expense (10,160)$           (10,160)$           

Total miscellaneous other income (expense) (10,160)$            (10,160)$            

Other related party fees and expenses
Incentive management fee 100,300$          91,760$            

Total other related party fees and expenses 100,300$           91,760$             
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Operation Statements - Baybrook Park May 2020-May 2021

Link to Operation Statements May 2020 - May 2021

https://hchatexas-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/samson_babalola_hchatexas_org/Em1ylHUQ9lVKsxieyHO5vyYBuiuFUqc_TOOXzy8ssO1aMA?e=5GzBIw
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